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C O R P O R A T I O N  L I M I T E D
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D IR E C T O R S

S H R I  B .  K .  B I R L A
S H R I  K U M A R  M A N G A L A M  B I R L A
S H R I  P . K .  K H A I T A N
S H R I  D .  K .  M A N T R l
S H R I  A .  V .  J A L A N
S H R I  K .  K .  D A G A
S H R I  R .  A .  M A K H A R I A

-  Executive Director

S E C R E T A R Y

S H R I  B .  D .  D A L M I A

A U D IT O R S

M / S .  S .  R .  B A T L I B O I  &  C O .  
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S  
K O L K A T A  -  7 0 0  0 1 6

R E G IS T E R E D  O FF IC E

B I R L A  B U I L D I N G
9 / 1 , R .  N .  M U K H E R J E E  R O A D
K O L K A T A  -  7 0 0  0 0 1



D IR E C T O R S ’ R E P O R T

T O  T H E  S H A R E H O L D E R S  

D e a r  S h a r e h o l d e r s ,

W e  h a v e  p l e a s u r e  in p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  o f t h e  C o m p a n y  a l o n g  w ith  t h e  A u d i t e d  S t a t e m e n t  o f  
A c c o u n t s  f o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1  M a r c h , 2 0 1 1 .  T h e  F i n a n c i a l  R e s u l t s  f o r  t h e  y e a r  a r e  s h o w n  b e l o w

F I N A N C I A L  R E S U L T S

P r o f i t  f r o m  o p e r a t i o n s . D i v i d e n d ,

(Amount in Rs.)
2 0 1 0 - 2 0 1 1  2 0 0 9 - 2 0 1 0

I n t e r e s t  a n d  R e n t  I n c o m e 4 4 ,6 7 ,2 8 ,3 9 5 4 6 ,6 3 ,8 7 ,9 4 7

A d d  : P r o v i s i o n  w r it t e n  b a c k  f o r : 
d i m i n u t i o n  in  v a l u e  o f  L o n g  
T e r m  U n q u o t e d  I n v e s t m e n t s  
a n d  M u t u a l  F u n d s 1 ,0 8 ,0 7 ,3 7 8

4 4 ,6 7 ,2 8 ,3 9 5 4 7 ,7 1 ,9 5 ,3 2 5

L e s s ;  D e p r e c i a t i o n 1 ,5 8 ,4 8 3 1 ,9 6 ,8 4 9

P r o f i t  b e f o r e  t a x 4 4 ,6 5 ,6 9 , 9 1 2 4 7 ,6 9 ,9 8 ,4 7 6

L e s s ;  P r o v i s i o n  f o r  t a x a t i o n 5 0 ,0 0 ,0 0 0 1 ,6 0 ,9 5 ,2 8 4

A d d ;  M A T  C r e d i t  ( E n t i t l e m e n t ) - 7 9 ,7 7 ,3 4 3

L e s s :  D e f e r r e d  t a x a t i o n 2 4 ,1 6 ,4 6 9 1 3 ,1 4 ,7 2 0

P r o f i t  a f t e r  t a x a t i o n 4 3 , 9 1 ,5 3 ,4 4 3 4 6 ,7 5 ,6 5 ,8 1 5

A d d ;  B a l a n c e  b r o u g h t  d o w n 6 8 , 6 0 , 7 5 , 7 1 4 5 9 ,2 6 ,6 7 ,2 6 2

A v a i l a b l e  P r o f i t  d e a l t  w i t h  a s  u n d e r 1 , 1 2 , 5 2 , 2 9 , 1 5 7 1 ,0 6 ,0 2 ,3 3 ,0 7 7

S p e c ia l  R e s e r v e 8 , 7 9 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 9 ,3 6 ,0 0 ,0 0 0

P r o p o s e d  D i v i d e n d 1 9 , 7 7 , 1 8 , 7 5 0 1 9 , 7 7 , 1 8 , 7 5 0

C o r p o r a t e  D i v i d e n d  T a x 3 ,2 0 , 7 4 , 9 2 5 3 ,2 8 ,3 8 ,6 1 3

G e n e r a l  R e s e r v e 5 ,0 0 ,0 0 ,0 0 0 5 ,0 0 ,0 0 ,0 0 0

B a l a n c e  c a r r ie d  f o r w a r d 7 5 ,7 5 ,3 5 ,4 8 2 6 8 , 6 0 ,7 5 ,7 1 4

1 , 1 2 , 5 2 , 2 9 , 1 5 7 1 ,0 6 ,0 2 ,3 3 ,0 7 7

T h e  p r o fita b ility  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  d u r in g  t h e  y e a r  u n d e r  r e v i e w  a p p e a r s  l e s s  m a i n l y  d u e  t o  r e c e ip t  o f  
l e s s e r  d i v i d e n d  f r o m  f e w  C o m p a n i e s  a n d  p r o v is i o n  f o r  d im in u t io n  in t h e  v a l u e  o f  u n its  o f  s o m e  s c h e m e s  
o f  t h e  m u t u a l  f u n d s  d u e  t o  d e c l i n e  in t h e  c a p ita l  m a r k e t s .  In  o r d e r  t o  c o n t r o l  h ig h  in fla t io n , R B I  h a s



D IR E C T O R S ’ R E P O R T  —  (Contd.)

a d o p t e d  tig h te r  m o n e t a r y  p o lic ie s  re s u ltin g  in h ig h e r  in te r e s t r a te s  o n  t h e  b o r r o w in g s  b y  v a r io u s  c o m p a n i e s  
a f f e c t in g  t h e ir  m a r g i n s . R B I  h a s  p e g g e d  G D P  g r o w t h  r a t e  f o r  t h e  c u r r e n t  fis c a l a t  8 %  a g a i n s t  t h e  e a r lie r  
p r o j e c t i o n s  o f  9 %  b y  t h e  G o v e r n m e n t . T h e  e c o n o m y  g r e w  b y  8 . 6 %  in 2 0 1 0 - 2 0 1 1 .

D I V I D E N D

T h e  B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s  h a s  r e c o m m e n d e d  a  d i v i d e n d  o f  R s . 2 5  p e r  s h a r e  ( R u p e e s  T w e n t y  F i v e )  p e r  
s h a r e  o f  R s .  1 0 / -  e a c h  e q u i v a l e n t  t o  2 5 0 %  ( t w o  h u n d r e d  fift y  p e r c e n t )  o n  t h e  p a i d  u p  e q u i t y  s h a r e  
c a p ita l o f t h e  C o m p a n y  f o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1  M a r c h ,  2 0 1 1  a s  a g a i n s t  R s .  2 5  ( R u p e e s  T w e n t y  F i v e )  
e q u i v a l e n t  t o  2 5 0 %  ( t w o  h u n d r e d  fif t y  p e r c e n t )  p a i d  in t h e  p r e v i o u s  y e a r  o n  t h e  e q u i t y  s h a r e s  o f  
R s .  1 0 / -  e a c h .  T h e  d i v i d e n d  w ill b e  p a i d  w h e n  d e c l a r e d  b y  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s  in  a c c o r d a n c e  w ith  la w . 
T h e  d i v id e n d  w ill b e  f r e e  o f  t a x  in t h e  h a n d s  o f  t h e  s h a r e h o l d e r s . T h e  C o m p a n y  w ill h a v e  to  p a y  d iv id e n d  
d is tr ib u t io n  t a x  a t  t h e  r a t e  o f  1 5 %  p lu s  a p p l i c a b l e  s u r c h a r g e  a n d  e d u c a t i o n  c e s s , a g g r e g a t i n g  a b o u t  
1 6 . 2 2 2 5 %  o n  t h e  d i v i d e n d  a m o u n t  s o  d is t r ib u t e d .

D I R E C T O R S

S h r i  D .  K .  M a n t r i  a n d  S h r i  A . V .  J a l a n ,  D i r e c t o r s  o f t h e  C o m p a n y  r e t ir e  f r o m  t h e  o f f i c e  b y  r o ta tio n  a t  t h e  
f o r t h c o m i n g  A n n u a l  G e n e r a l  M e e t i n g  b u t  b e in g  e lig ib le  o f f e r  t h e m s e l v e s  f o r  r e - e l e c t i o n .

D I R E C T O R S ’ R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y  S T A T E M E N T

In  c o m p l i a n c e  w ith  S e c t i o n  2 1 7 ( 2 A A )  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 , t h e  D i r e c t o r s  t o  t h e  b e s t  o f  th e ir  
k n o w l e d g e  a n d  b e l i e f  c o n f i r m  t h a t -

(i) in t h e  p r e p a r a t i o n  o f  t h e  A n n u a l  A c c o u n t s , t h e  a p p lic a b le  a c c o u n t i n g  s t a n d a r d s  h a v e  b e e n  fo llo w e d  
a lo n g w it h  p r o p e r  e x p l a n a t i o n  r e la t in g  t o  m a t e r ia l  d e p a r t u r e s ;

(ii) t h e  D i r e c t o r s  h a v e  s e l e c t e d  s u c h  a c c o u n t i n g  p o lic ie s  a s  m e n t i o n e d  in S c h e d u l e  ‘ G ’ o f t h e  a n n u a l  
a c c o u n t s  a n d  a p p l i e d  t h e m  c o n s i s t e n t l y  a n d  m a d e  j u d g e m e n t s  a n d  e s t i m a t e s  t h a t  a r e  r e a s o n a b l e  
a n d  p r u d e n t  s o  a s  to  g i v e  a  t r u e  a n d  f a ir  v i e w  o f  t h e  s t a t e  o f  a f f a ir s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  th e  
f in a n c ia i  y e a r  a s  o n  3 1  M a r c h , 2 0 1 1  a n d  t h e  P r o f i t  o r  L o s s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  f o r  t h e  fin a n c ia l  y e a r  
e n d e d  o n  t h a t  d a t e ;

(iii) p r o p e r  a n d  s u f f i c i e n t  c a r e  h a s  b e e n  t a k e n  f o r  t h e  m a i n t e n a n c e  o f  a d e q u a t e  a c c o u n t i n g  r e c o r d s  in 
a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  A c t  f o r  s a f e g u a r d i n g  t h e  a s s e t s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  
a n d  f o r  p r e v e n t i n g  a n d  d e t e c t i n g  f r a u d  a n d  o t h e r  ir r e g u la r itie s ;

(iv) t h e  a n n u a l  a c c o u n t s  h a v e  b e e n  p r e p a r e d  o n  a  g o i n g  c o n c e r n  b a s i s .

C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E
T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  in p l a c e  a  s y s t e m  o f  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e m a n c e .  A  s e p a r a t e  R e p o r t  o n  C o r p o r a t e  
G o v e r n a n c e  is e n c l o s e d  a s  a  p a r t  o f  th is  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y .  A  c e r tif ic a te  f r o m  A u d i t o r s  o f  
t h e  C o m p a n y  r e g a r d i n g  c o m p l i a n c e  o f  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e  a s  s t i p u l a t e d  u n d e r  C l a u s e  4 9  o f  th e  
L is t i n g  A g r e e m e n t  is a n n e x e d  to  t h e  R e p o r t  o n  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e .



S U B S I D I A R Y  C O M P A N Y
T h e  A u d i t e d  A c c o u n t s  a n d  D i r e c t o r s ’ R e p o r t  o f  t h e  s u b s i d i a r y  a r e  a n n e x e d  h e r e t o .

A U D I T O R S
S . R .  B a t lib o i  &  C o . ,  t h e  A u d i t o r s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y , r e t ir e , a n d  b e i n g  e lig ib le , o f f e r  t h e m s e l v e s  fo r  
r e a p p o i n t m e n t .

A U D I T O R S  R E P O R T
T h e  o b s e r v a t i o n s  m a d e  in t h e  A u d i t o r s  R e p o r t  a r e  s e l f  e x p l a n a t o r y  a n d , t h e r e f o r e , d o  n o t  c a ll f o r  a n y  
f u r t h e r  e x p l a n a t i o n  u n d e r  S e c t i o n  2 1 7 ( 3 )  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 .

E M P L O Y E E S
I n f o r m a t i o n  a s  p e r  S e c t i o n  2 1 7 ( 2 A )  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 , r e a d  w ith  t h e  C o m p a n i e s  ( P a r t ic u la r s  
o f  E m p l o y e e s )  R u l e s , 1 9 7 5 ,  a r e  n o t  a p p l i c a b l e  a s  n o  e m p l o y e e  w a s  in r e c e i p t  o f  s u c h  r e m u n e r a t i o n  a s  
p r o v i d e d  u n d e r  t h e  s a i d  S e c t i o n .

D E P O S I T S
T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  n o t  a c c e p t e d  a n y  p u b lic  d e p o s i t  d u r in g  t h e  y e a r . H e n c e ,  n o  i n f o r m a t i o n  is r e q u ir e d  
t o  b e  a p p e n d e d  t o  t h is  r e p o r t  in t e r m s  o f  N o n - B a n k i n g  F i n a n c i a l  C o m p a n i e s  A c c e p t a n c e  o f  P u b lic  
D e p o s i t s  ( R e s e r v e  B a n k )  D i r e c t i o n s , 1 9 9 8 .

C O N S E R V A T I O N  O F  E N E R G Y ,  T E C H N O L O G Y  A B S O R P T I O N  A N D  F O R E I G N  E X C H A N G E  E A R N I N G  
A N D O U T G O
T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  n o  m a n u f a c t u r i n g  a c tiv ity  a n d  t h e r e f o r e , t h e  d is c lo s u r e  o f  p a r tic u la r s  a s  re q u ire d  to  b e  
a p p e n d e d  u n d e r  S e c t i o n  2 1 7 (  1 ) ( a )  o f  t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 , in s o  f a r  a s  it r e la t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s e r v a t i o n  
o f t h e  E n e r g y  a n d  T e c h n o l o g y  A b s o r p t i o n  is n o t  a p p lic a b le . P a r t i c u l a r s  w ith  r e g a r d  to  F o r e i g n  E x c h a n g e  
E a r n i n g s  a n d  O u t g o  a p p e a r  in S c h e d u l e  ‘ G ’ to  t h e  a c c o u n t s  a n d  f o r m i n g  p a r t  o f  th is  R e p o r t .

C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T
T h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  h a v e  b e e n  p r e p a r e d  b y  t h e  C o m p a n y  in a c c o r d a n c e  w ith  th e  
r e q u i r e m e n t s  o f  A c c o u n t i n g  S t a n d a r d - 2 1  is s u e d  b y  t h e  In s titu te  o f  C h a r t e r e d  A c c o u n t a n t s  o f  In d ia  a n d  a s  
s tip u la t e d  b y  C l a u s e  3 2  o f t h e  L i s t i n g  A g r e e m e n t  w ith  t h e  S t o c k  E x c h a n g e s  w ith  w h ic h  t h e  S h a r e s  o f t h e  
C o m p a n y  a r e  lis te d . T h e  a u d i t e d  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r m  p a r t  o f  t h e  A n n u a l  R e p o r t .  

A P P R E C I A T I O N
Y o u r  D i r e c t o r s  p l a c e  o n  r e c o r d  t h e ir  d e e p  a p p r e c i a t i o n  f o r  t h e  c o m m i t t e d  s e r v i c e s  r e n d e r e d  b y  th e  
e m p l o y e e s  o f  y o u r  C o m p a n y .

F o r  a n d  o n  b e h a l f  o f  t h e  B o a r d  o f  D ir e c to r s

K o l k a t a  R .  A .  M A K H A R I A  B .  K .  B I R L A
3 1 s t  M a y , 2 0 1 1  Executive Director Director



S T A T E M E N T  P U R S U A N T  T O  S E C T I O N  2 1 2  O F  T H E  C O M P A N I E S  A C T ,  1 9 5 6

A .  A t l a s  I r o n  &  A l l o y s  L i m i t e d

i) A t l a s  Ir o n  &  A l l o y s  L i m i t e d , s u b s i d i a r y  o f t h e  c o m p a n y  w e n t  in to  C r e d i t o r s  V o l u n t a r y  w i n d in g  
u p  v i d e  its  r e s o l u t i o n  d a t e d  ie®" J u n e ,  1 9 7 5  a n d  t h e  w i n d i n g  u p  p r o c e e d i n g s  a r e  in p r o g r e s s .

T h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  r e q u i r e d  t o  b e  g i v e n  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  2 1 2  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 , in 
r e s p e c t  o f t h e  S u b s i d i a r y  a s  is  a p p l i c a b l e  in v i e w  o f  t h e  a f o r e s a i d  is  g i v e n  b e lo w .

ii) P ila n i I n v e s t m e n t  a n d  In d u s tr ie s  C o r p o r a t i o n  L im it e d  h e ld  7 2 ,0 0 0  E q u i t y  S h a r e s  o f  R s .  1 0 / -  e a c h  
a m o u n t i n g  t o  9 6 .8 3 %  o f t h e  to t a l p a i d  u p  C a p i t a l  o f  7 4 ,3 5 8  E q u i t y  S h a r e s  o f  R s . 1 0 / -  e a c h  o f  
A t l a s  Ir o n  &  A l l o y s  L t d .  a n d  c o n t i n u e s  t o  h o ld  t h e  s a m e . In  v i e w  o f  t h e  S u b s i d i a r y  b e in g  in 
liq u id a t io n  a n d  l o s s e s  s u s t a i n e d  b y  it, t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  o f  R s . 7 . 2 0  la c s  in t h e  s h a r e s  o f  th e  
s u b s i d i a r y  a s  a f o r e s a i d  is  t a k e n  a t  nil v a l u e .

B .  P I C  P r o p e r t i e s  L i m i t e d

P ila n i I n v e s t m e n t  a n d  In d u s tr ie s  C o r p o r a t i o n  U m i t e d  h e ld  5 0 ,0 0 2  E q u i t y  S h a r e s  o f  R s .1 0 / - e a c h  
b e i n g  t h e  w h o l e  o f t h e  s u b s c r i b e d  c a p ita l  o f  P I C  P r o p e r t i e s  L t d .  a s  o n  3 P ‘  M a r c h , 2 0 1 1 .  T h e  
F i n a n c i a l  y e a r  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a s  w e ll  a s  t h e  s u b s i d i a r y  e n d e d  o n  3 1  “  M a r c h , 2 0 1 1 .

a )  T h e  n e t  a g g r e g a t e  a m o u n t ,  s o  f a r  a s  it c o n c e r n s  m e m b e r s  o f  h o l d i n g  c o m p a n y  a n d  is n o t  
d e a l t  w ith  in t h e  C o m p a n y  a c c o u n t s , o f  t h e  S u b s i d i a r y ’ s  p r o f it s  a f t e r  d e d u c t i n g  its  l o s s e s  o r  
v ic e  v e r s a .

F o r  t h e  F i n a n c i a l  y e a r  o f  t h e  S u b s i d i a r y  R s . 4 , 0 7 , 8 7 7  [ P r e v i o u s  y e a r  R s . 3 ,9 6 ,9 8 9 ]

b ) T h e  n e t  a g g r e g a t e  a m o u n t  o f  t h e  p r o f it s  o f  t h e  S u b s i d i a r y  a f t e r  d e d u c t i n g  its  l o s s e s  o r  v ic e  
v e r s a , s o  f a r  s u c h  p r o f i t s / l o s s e s  a r e  d e a l t  w i th  in t h e  c o m p a n y ’ s  p r o f it s  f o r  t h e  fin a n c ia l  y e a r  
o f  t h e  S u b s i d i a r y  is  n il.

F o r  a n d  o n  b e h a l f  o f  t h e  B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s

K o l k a t a  R .  A .  M A K H A R I A  B .  K .  B I R L A
3 1  s t  M a y , 2 0 1 1  Executive Director Director



A U D IT O R S ' C E R T IF IC A T E

T O  T H E  M E M B E R S  O F  P I L A N I  I N V E S T M E N T  A N D  I N D U S T R I E S  C O R P O R A T I O N  L I M I T E D

W e  h a v e  e x a m i n e d  t h e  c o m p l i a n c e  o f  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  c o r p o r a t e  g o v e r n a n c e  b y  P I L A N I  I N V E S T M E N T  

A N D  I N D U S T R I E S  C O R P O R A T I O N  L I M I T E D ,  f o r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1 s t  M a r c h ,  2 0 1 1 ,  a s  

s t i p u l a t e d  in c l a u s e  4 9  o f  t h e  L i s t i n g  A g r e e m e n t  o f  t h e  s a i d  C o m p a n y  w i th  s t o c k  e x c h a n g e s .

T h e  c o m p l i a n c e  o f  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  c o r p o r a t e  g o v e r n a n c e  is t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  t h e  m a n a g e m e n t .  O u r  

e x a m i n a t i o n  w a s  lim ite d  t o  p r o c e d u r e s  a n d  i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  t h e r e o f , a d o p t e d  b y  t h e  c o m p a n y  fo r  

e n s u r i n g  t h e  c o m p l i a n c e  o f  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  t h e  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e ,  it is  n e i t h e r  a n  a u d i t  n o r  a n  

e x p r e s s i o n  o f  o p i n i o n  o n  t h e  fi n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y .

T h e  C h a i r m a n  o f  t h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  h a s  n o t  a t t e n d e d  t h e  A n n u a l  G e n e r a l  M e e t i n g  h e ld  o n  2 7 t h  

A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 0 ,  subject to above, in  o u r  o p i n i o n  a n d  t o  t h e  b e s t  o f  o u r  i n f o r m a t i o n  a n d  a c c o r d i n g  t o  t h e  

e x p l a n a t i o n s  g i v e n  t o  u s , w e  c e r t i f y  t h a t  t h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  c o m p l i e d  w i t h  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  C o r p o r a t e  

G o v e r n a n c e  a s  s t i p u l a t e d  in t h e  a b o v e  m e n t i o n e d  L i s t i n g  A g r e e m e n t .

W e  f u r t h e r  s t a t e  t h a t  s u c h  c o m p l i a n c e  is n e i t h e r  a n  a s s u r a n c e  a s  t o  t h e  f u t u r e  v i a b ilit y  o f  t h e  

C o m p a n y  n o r  t h e  e f f i c i e n c y  o r  e f f e c t i v e n e s s  w i th  w h i c h  t h e  m a n a g e m e n t  h a s  c o n d u c t e d  t h e  a ffa ir s  

o f  t h e  C o m p a n y .

For S .  R .  B A T L I B O I  &  C O .
Firm Registration No. 301003E 

Chartered Accountants 
P e r  S A N J O Y  K  G U P T A

P l a c e : K o lk a ta  Partner
M a y  3 1 ,  2 0 1 1  Membership No. 54968



R E P O R T  O N  C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E
Y o u r  c o m p a n y  h a s  b e e n  p r a c t ic in g  t h e  p r in c ip le s  o f  g o o d  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e ,  w h i c h  c o m p r i s e  all 
a c tiv itie s  t h a t  r e s u lt  in t h e  c o n t r o l  o f t h e  C o m p a n y  in a  r e g u l a e d  m a n n e r , a i m i n g  t o  a c h i e v e  t r a n s p a r e n t , 
a c c o u n t a b l e  and f a ir  m a n a g e m e n t .
T h e  d e t a ils  o f  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e  c o m p l i a n c e  b y  t h e  C o m p a n y  a s  p e r t h e  C l a u s e  4 9  o f t h e  L is t i n g  
A g r e e m e n t  w i th  S t o c k  E x c h a n g e s  a r e  a s  u n d e r ;

1 .  C O M P U A N C E  O F  M A N A D A T O R Y  R E Q U I R E M E N T S ;

A .  C o m p a n y ’ s  p h o l o s o p h y  o n  C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r n a n c e

C o r p o r a t e  G o v e r a n c e  p e r t a in s  to  s y s t e m s , b y  w h ic h  c o m p a n i e s  a r e  d ir e c te d  a n d  c o n t r o ll e d , k e e p in g  
in m i n d  l o n g - t e r m  in t e r e s t  o f  S t a k e h o l d e r s .  In  s u m , c o r p o r a t e  g o v e r n a n c e  is  t o  a c h i e v e  b u s i n e s s  
e x e c e l l e n c e  a n d  d e d i c a t e  it s e lf  t o  t r a n s p a r e n c y  in a ll its  d e a l i n g s  a n d  p l a c e s  a n d  b u s i n e s s  e f f o r ts . 
T h e  C o m p a n y  fir m ly  b e l i e v e s  in  t h e  s p ir it  o f  c o r p o r a t e  g o v e r n a n c e  a n d  t h e  s a m e  h a s  in f lu e n c e d  its 
d e c i s i o n s  a n d  p o lic ie s  l o n g  b e f o r e  t h e  g u i d e l i n e s  b e c a m e  m a n d a t o r y .

B .  B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s

( i)  C o m p o s i t i o n  o f t h e  B o a r d  :

T h e  B o a r d  o f  d ir e c to r s  c o m p r i s e s  o f  s e v e n  m e m b e r s  c o n s is t in g  o f  s i x  N o n - E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r s  w h o  
a c c o u n t  f o r  e i g h t y  s i x  p e r c e n t  o f  t h e  B o a r d  s tr e n g t h  a s  a g a i n s t  m i n i m u m  r e q u i r e m e n t  o f  fifty  p e r c e n t  
a s  p e r  t h e  lis tin g  a g r e e m e n t .  T h e  N o n - E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r s  a r e  e m i n e n t  p r o f e s s i o n a l s  d r a w n  fr o m  
a m o n g s t  p e r s o n s  w ith  e x p e r i e n c e  in b u s i n e s s  a n d  in d u s t r y , f i n a n c e  a n d  la w . T h e  c o m p o s i t i o n  is 
a s  u n d e r  ; -

D i r e c t o r s E x e c u t i v e  / N o .  o f  O u t s i d e N o .  o f  O u t s i d e
N o n - E x e c u t i v e / D i r e c t o r s h i p  h e ld C o m m i t t e e s #
I n d e p e n d e n t D o m e s t i c  C o m p a n i e s ( e x c l u d i n g  * * )

P u b l i c P r iv a t e M e m b e r C h a ir m a n

S h r i  B .  K .  B ir la N o n - E x e c u t i v e 4 - - -

S h r i  K u m a r  M a n g a l a m  B ir la N o n - E x e c u t i v e 1 0 1 5 - -

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n N o n - E x e c u t i v e * 1 4 - 5 -

S h r i  D .  K .  M a n t r i N o n - E x e c u t i v e * 3 2 2 — -

S h r i  A .  V .  J a l a n N o n - E x e c u t i v e 2 1 4 — -

S h r i  K .  K .  D a g a N o n - E x e c u t i v e * 1 2 - -

S h r i  R .  A .  M a k h a r i a E x e c u t i v e * * * 1 - -

A l s o  i n d e p e n d e n t
P r i v a t e  c o m p a n i e s  a n d  c o m p a n i e s  u n d e r  S e c t i o n  2 5  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6 .
S h r i  R .  A .  M a k h a r i a  is  t h e  M a n a g i n g  D i r e c t o r  o f t h e  C o m p a n y .
O n l y  t h e  t w o  c o m m i t t e e s  v i z .  t h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  a n d  t h e  S h a r e h o l d e r s  G r i e v a n c e  C o m m i t t e e  a r e  
c o n s i d e r e d  f o r  t h is  p u r p o s e .
N o n e  o f  t h e  D i r e c t o r s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  h o ld  a n y  E q u i t y  S h a r e s  in t h e  C o m p a n y .  N o  D i r e c t o r  is 
r e l a t e d  t o  a n y  o t h e r  D i r e c t o r  o n  t h e  B o a r d  in t e r m s  o f t h e  P r o v i s i o n s  o f t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  1 9 5 6  
e x c e p t  f o r  S h r i  B .  K .  B i r l a , S h r i  K u m a r  M a n g a l a m  B ir la  a n d  S h r i  A .  V .  J a l a n  w h o  a r e  r e la t e d  to  e a c h  
o th e r .



(a ) T h e  N o n - E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r s  h a v e  n o  m a t e r ia l  p e c u n i a r y  r e l a t i o n s h i p  o r  t r a n s a c t i o n s  w ith  th e  
C o m p a n y  in t h e ir  p e r s o n a l  c a p a c i t y .

(ii) D e t a i l s  o f  s it t in g s  f e e s , r e m u n e r a t i o n  e t c . p a i d  t o  D i r e c t o r s

N a m e  o f t h e  D i r e c t o r s R e m u n e r a t i o n  p a i d  d u r in g  2 0 1 0 - 2 0 1 1  
S i t t i n g s  f e e s  f o r  a t t e n d i n g  M e e t i n g s  o f  
t h e  B o a r d  a n d / o r  c o m m i t t e e  t h e r e o f  

( A l l  f i g u r e s  in R s . )

S h r i  B .  K .  B ir la 1 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  K u m a r  M a n g a l a m  B ir la 2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n 2 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  D .  K .  M a n t r i 2 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  A .  V .  J a l a n 2 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  K .  K .  D a g a 2 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

S h r i  R .  A .  M a k h a r i a 1 ,2 0 ,0 0 0

E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r R e m u n e r a t i o n B e n e f i t s  a n d  p e r q u is it e s  
in c lu d in g  R s .  5 ,0 7 ,7 6 0 / -  
b e in g  r e n t

S h r i  R .  A .  M a k h a r i a  R s .  2 3 ,3 6 ,0 6 4

N o t e  : 1 .  N o  c o m m i s s i o n  is  p a i d  t o  a n y  D i r e c t o r s .

R s .  1 8 ,5 4 ,5 6 5

2 . S h r i  R  K .  K h a i t a n  is  a  p a r t n e r  in K h a i t a n  &  C o .  a n d  r e n d e r s  p r o f e s s i o n a l  s e r v i c e s  to  th e  
C o m p a n y  a n d  a  s u m  o f  R e .  3 ,6 0 ,2 8 1 / -  h a s  b e e n  p a i d  t o w a r d s  P r o f e s s i o n a l  s e r v i c e s  to  
K h a i t a n  &  C o .

N u m b e r  o f  B o a r d  M e e t i n g s  h e ld  a n d  a t t e n d e d  b y  t h e  D i r e c t o r s :

a .  S i x  m e e t i n g s  o f t h e  B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s  w e r e  h e ld  d u r i n g  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1 s t  M a r c h  2 0 1 1 .  
T h e s e  w e r e  h e ld  o n :

( 1 )  2 9 t h  A p r i l .  2 0 1 0

( 4 )  6 th  N o v e m b e r , 2 0 1 0

( 2 )  7 t h  J u l y , 2 0 1 0

( 5 )  1 2 t h  J a n u a r y ,  2 0 1 1

( 3 )  1 1 t h  A u g u s t ,  2 0 1 0

( 6 )  1 4 t h  F e b r u a r y , 2 0 1 1



b . T h e  a t t e n d a n c e  r e c o r d  o f  e a c h  o f  t h e  D i r e c t o r s  a t  t h e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g s  d u r i n g  t h e  y e a r  
e n d e d  o n  3 1  M a r c h , 2 0 1 1  a n d  o f  t h e  l a s t  A n n u a l  G e n e r a l  M e e t i n g  is  a s  u n d e r

D i r e c t o r s
N o .  o f  B o a r d  M e e t i n g s  

A t t e n d e d
A t t e n d a n c e  o f  t h e  

la s t  A G M

S h r i B .  K .  B ir la - ' A  6 -

S h r i  K u m a r  M a n g a l a m  B ir la 1 -

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n 6 -

S h r i  D .  K .  M a n t r i 6 Y e s

S h r i  A .  V .  J a l a n 6 -

S h r i  K .  K .  D a g a 6 -
S h r i  R .  A .  M a k h a r i a 6 Y e s

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n , C h a i r m a n  o f  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  c o u l d  n o t  a t t e n d  t h e  A n n u a l  G e n e r a l  
M e e t i n g  a s  h e  w a s  i n d i s p o s e d .

C .  C o d e  o f  C o n d u c t

T h e  C o m p a n y  h a s  la id  d o w n  a  C o d e  o f  C o n d u c t  f o r  a ll t h e  B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s  a n d  S e n i o r  
M a n a g e m e n t  P e r s o n n e l  f o r  a v o i d a n c e  o f  c o n f lic t  o f  i n t e r e s t . It h a s  r e c e i v e d  f r o m  a ll o f  t h e m  t h e  
n e c e s s a r y  d e c l a r a t i o n  a f f i r m i n g  c o m p l i a n c e  w i th  C o d e  o f  C o n d u c t  f o r  t h e  y e a r  2 0 1 0 - 2 0 1 1  .  T h e r e  
w e r e  n o  m a t e r i a l  f i n a n c i a l  a n d  c o m m e r c i a l  t r a n s a c t i o n s  in  w h i c h  t h e  S e n i o r  M a n a g e m e n t  
p e r s o n n e l , h a d  p e r s o n a l  i n t e r e s t , w h i c h  w o u l d  le a d  t o  p o t e n t i a l  c o n f lic t  o f  i n te r e s t  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  
d u r i n g  t h e  y e a r .  T h e  C o d e  o f  C o n d u c t  is  a v a ila b l e  o n  C o m p a n y ’s  w e b s i t e .

D .  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e

(i) T h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  c o m p r i s e d  o f  f o u r  N o n - E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r s  v i z .

( 1 )  S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n  ( 2 )  S h r i  D . K .  M a n t r i  ( 3 )  S h r i  A . V .  J a l a n  ( 4 )  S h r i  K . K .  D a g a  

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n , S h r i  D . K .  M a n t r i  a n d  S h r i  K . K .  D a g a  b e i n g  I n d e p e n d e n t  N o n - E x e c u t i v e  
D ir e c t o r s .

(ii) A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  m e e t i n g s  w e r e  h e l d  o n  2 9 " ’ A p r i l ,  2 0 1 0 ,  7 ' ' ’ J u l y ,  2 0 1 0 ,  1 1 '"  A u g u s t ,  
2 0 1 0 , 4 * '  N o v e m b e r , 2 0 1 0  a n d  M ’" F e b r u a r y , 2 0 1 1 .  T h e  a t t e n d a n c e  o f  t h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  
M e m b e r s  is a s  u n d e r

N a m e  o f  t h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  M a m b e r s  N o .  o f  M e e t i n g  A t t e n d e d

S h r i  P . K .  K h a i t a n  5

S h r i  D .  K .  M a n t r i  5

S h r i  A .  V . J a l a n  5

S h r i  K .  K .  D a g a  5



(iii) At the invitation of the company, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Secretary who is 
acting as Secretary of the Audit Committee and other officers of the Company also attended 
the Audit Committee meetings to answer and clarify queries raised at the said meetings.

(iv) The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the matters specified for 
Audit Committees under Clause 49 of listing agreement of the Stock Exchanges as prescribed 
by SEB l as well as Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

E. Remuneration Committee

The Company has only one Executive Director on the Board and whose appointment and 
remuneration has been fixed by the Board in terms of resolution passed by the members. In view 
of this, no remuneration committee is required to be constituted.

F. Shareholders Grievance Committee

The Company has constituted a Share Transfer and Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee 
headed by Shri P.K. Khaitan, a Non-Executive Independent Director. The Company Secretary 
has been designated as the Compliance Cfficer. During the year ended 31®' March, 2011,17 
investors complaints/queries were received and as on 31 ®* March, 2011 there were no complaints/ 
queries pending reply. There were no share transfer pending for registration for more than 30 days 
as on the said date.

G. General Body Meetings
Details of Annual Generat Meetings/Extra Crdinary General Meeting held in last three years are 
as under:

Year D a t e  Type Location Time

2007-2008 25.08.2008 AGM 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 3.00 P.M.

2008-2009 21.08.2009 AGM 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 3.00 P.M.

2009-2010 27.08.2010 AGM 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 3.00 P.M.

Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year No

Are votes proposed to be conducted through postal ballot this year? No

H. Disclosures

(i) There are no materially significant transactions with related parties viz. Promoters, Directors 
or the Management, their subsidiaries or relative conflicting with Company’s interest.

(ii) No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBl 
or any statutory authority on any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three 
years.

(iii) The Company has adopted and complied with mandatory requirements as per the revised 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Some of the non mandatory requirements have also 
been complied with.



The Financial Express, Kolkata 
and Dainik Statesman, Kolkata

No

Yes - www.pilaniinvestments.com 

Yes

I. Means of Communication

(i) Quarterly results:

Which newspaper normally published in

(ii) Half-yearly report sent to each 
household of Shareholders

(iii) Any website, where displayed

(iv) Whether MD & A is a part of 
Annual Report

J. Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Your Company is an Investment Company and risk of the company consists principally of 
investment in shares and securities, loans and trade accounts receivable and investment in 
Mutual Funds. Internal control and monitoring systems are periodically evaluated to manage 
and minimize the risk.

The Company is fully committed to ensuring an effective internal control environment and 
periodically checks the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.

K. General Shareholder Information

(i) Annual General Meeting to be held :

Day & Date Friday, the 26"’ August, 2011

Venue Birla Building, 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee

Road, Kolkata -  700001

3.00 P.M.

On or before 14*' August, 2011 

On or before 14*’ November, 2011 

On or before 14*' February, 2012

Before end of June, 2012

20"’ August, 2011 to 26" August, 2011 

(Both days inclusive)

Time

Financial Calendar (tentative) for the year 2011 -12: 

First Quarterly Results 

Second Quarterly Results 

Third Quarterly Results 

Fourth Quarterly Results / Audited Yearly 

Results for the Year ended 31 March, 2012 

Date of Book Closure

http://www.pilaniinvestments.com


(iv) Date of Dividend payment On or after 8'" September, 2011

(v) Information pertaining to the Stock Exchanges :

(a) The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the following Stock Exchanges :

(i) Madhya Pradesh Stock Exchange, 201 Palika Plaza-ll, M T  H Compound, Indore-  
452001 (M.P.) Stock Code No.: N.A.

(ii) Delhi Stock Exchange Association Ltd., D SE  House, 3/1 Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi 
-  110002. Stock Code No.: D SE  16074

Note: Listing fees for the year 2011 -2012 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.

(b) ISIN No. for the Company’s ordinary shares in Demat Form: INE 417C01014

(c) Depository Connectivity : NSDL and CDSL

(d) Registrar and Transfer Agent:

Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd., D-511, Bagree Market, 71, B.R.B.Basu Road, Kolkata- 
700001.

(e) Market Price Data

The details of monthly highest and lowest closing quotations of the equity shares of 
the Company at the Delhi Stock Exchange Association Ltd. during the financial year 
2010-11 are as under:

Quotation at Delhi Stock Exchange Association Ltd.

Month High Low

April 2010 N.A. N.A.

May 2010 N.A. N.A.

June 2010 N.A. N.A.

July 2010 N.A. N.A.

Aug. 2010 N.A. N.A.

Sept. 2010 N.A. N.A.

Oct. 2010 N.A. N.A.

Nov. 2010 N.A. N.A.

Dec. 2010 N.A. N.A.

Jan. 2011 N.A. N.A.

Feb. 2011 N.A. N.A.

Mar. 2011 N.A. N.A.



(f) Share Transfer System for physical Shares ;

Share transfers are generally registered within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt 
provided the documents are complete in all respects. All share transfers are approved by the 
Board.

(vi) Distribution of Shareholding :

Distribution of shareholding as on 31 “ March, 2011

(a) According to Number of Equity Shares

SI.No No. of Equity Shares 
held

No.of
Folios

No. of Shares % of Share­
holding

1. 1 -5 0 0 3045 3,49,237 4.42
2. 501-1,000 134 97,449 1.23
3. 1,001-2,000 57 77,797 0.98
4. 2,001-3,000 9 24,313 0.31
5. 3,001 -4,000 7 25,595 0.32
6. 4001 -5,000 4 18,081 0.23
7. 5,001-10,000 10 81,222 1.03
8. 10,001-50,000 18 4,53,242 5.73
9. 50,001-1,00,000 3 1,72,507 2.18
10. 1,00,001 and above 7 66,09,307 83.57

Total 3294 79,08,750 100.00
(b) Categories of Shareholding :

SI.
No.

Category
No.of
Folios

% of
Folios

No. of Shares 
held

% of share 
holding

1. Promoters 10 0.30 45,51,716 57.55

2. Resident Individuals 3113 94.51 6,59,155 8.34

3. Private Corporate Bodies 152 4.61 26,63,967 33.68
4. Financial Institutions 

Nationalised Banks 6 0.18 21,025 0.27

5. Mutual Funds & Insurance — — — —

6. FIIS — — — —

7. NRI and C C B s 13 0.40 12,887 0.16

Total 3294 100.00 79,08,750 100.00



(vii) Dematerialisation of shareholding and liquidity:

As per SE B I’s guidelines, your company’s shares are compulsorily traded in Dematerialized 
Form for all the investors with effect from 27"’ November, 2001. As on 31 March, 2011,39,86,682 
Company’s Equity shares representing 50.41 %  of the Company’s total Equity Shares were held 
in dematerialized form and balance 39,22,068 Equity Shares representing 49.59% were held in 
physical form.

(viii) Contact address for Shares and Share related matters:

For any assistance regarding Share transfers and transmission, change of address, duplicate/ 
missing Share Certificates, Demat, redressal of Complaints and Grievances, non-receipt of 
dividends and other matters, please write to or contact the Share Department of the Company 
at the address given below :

Shri N.K. Baheti, Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Ltd., Birla Building, M '"  Floor, 
9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001. Phone; 3057 3700./3041 0900 (Extn. 2439)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kolkata R. A. MAKHARIA B. K. BIRLA
31st May, 2011 Executive Director Director

D E C L A R A T IO N

The Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed their compliance of the 
‘Code of Conduct for Members of the Board and Senior Management’ for the year 2010-11 in 
terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

R.A. Makharia
Dated May 31,2011 Chief Executive Officer



INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s Business Profile

I)

il)

Registration Details
Registration No.

CIN No.

Balance Sheet Date

21-95302 State Code 

L2413WB2002 PTC095302 

31.3.2011

Capital Raised during the year (Amount in thousands)

Public Issue Nil Right Issue

Bonus Issue Nil Private Placement

iii) Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Thousands)

Total Liabilities 

Sources of Funds 

Paid-up Capital 

Secured Loans 

Application of Funds 

Net Fixed Assets 

Net Current Assets 

Accumulated Losses

67,59,383 Total Assets

79,088 Reserves & Surplus

NIL Unsecured Loans

1,860 Investments

(1,83,983) Misc. Expenditure

NIL Deferred Tax Assets

iv) Performance of Company (Amount in Thousands)

Turnover(including other income) 4,83,874 Total Expenditure

Profit Before Tax 4,46,570

Earning per Share in Rs. 55.53

Profit After Tax 

Dividend Rate in Rs.

v) Generic Names of Three principal products I Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)

Item Code No.

Description

21

Nil

Nil

67,59,383

64,39,958

NIL

67,01,169

NIL

NIL

37,304

4,39,153

25.00

NOT APPLICABLE



A U D IT O R S ' R E P O R T

TO THE M EM B ER S  OF PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTR IES CORPORATION LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTRIES 
CORPORATION LIMITED (the Company) as at 31st March, 2011 and also the Profit and Loss 

account and the Cash Flow statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. 

Those Standards require that we plan and perform fhe audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 

estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, 

we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the 

said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that: -

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law, have been kept by the company 

so far as appears from our examination of those books;

iii. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss account and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the books of account;

iv. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss account and Cash Flow statement dealt 

with by this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of 

Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.



A U D IT O R S 'R E P O R T  -  fConfd.;

V. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors, as on 31 st March, 2011, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified 

a s on 31st March, 2011 from being appointed as a Director in terms of 

clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

vi. Attention is drawn to Note No. 3 on Schedule G regarding non-provision of a claim of Rs. 

15.44 lacs plus interest thereon from 1st November 1973, by a bank in respect of the guarantee 

given by the company against which Rs. 69.27 lacs has been deposited with Debts Recovery 

Appellate tribunal pursuant to Hon'ble Bombay High Court order, pending disposal of the 

Company’s  writ petition filed thereagainst.

In respect of above, the previous year’s  audit report was similarly modified.

Subject to para (vi) above, whose impact on the Company’s profit is not presently ascertainable, 

the said accounts, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations 

given to us, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India

(a) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 st March, 2011;

(b) in the case of Profit & Loss Account, of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that 

date; and

(c) in case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm Registration No. 301003E  

Chartered Accountants 
Per SAN JO Y  K  GUPTA

Place: Kolkata Partner
Dated : May 31, 2011 Membership No. 54968



A N N E X U R E  T O  T H E  A U D IT O R S 'R E P O R T

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no 

material discrepancies were identified on such verification.
(c) There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence the requirement of sub clauses (a) to
(c) of clause (ii) of the Order, are not applicable.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clauses 4(iii)(a) to (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any 
loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 4(iii)(e) to (g) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, 
for the purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of services. During the course of our audit, we 
have not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in 
internal control system of the company in respect of these areas.
The Company has not made any purchase of inventory and sale of goods during the year and 
hence, this clause is not applicable with respect to the above areas.

(v) In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public.
(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business.
(viii) Since the company is not engaged in any manufacturing, processing or mining activities, the 

clause for maintenance of cost records under Sction 209(1 )(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 is not 
applicable.

(ix) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund,
or employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, custom duty, 
excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited 
with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in a few cases.
Further, since the Central Government has tili date not prescribed the amount of cess payable 
under Section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956, we are not in a position to comment upon 
the regulrity or otherwise of the company in depositing the same.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and other 
material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.



A N N E X U R E  T O  T H E  A U D IT O R S ' R E P O R T  -  (Contd)

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding in respect of sales tax, 
income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, service tax, excise duty, cess on account of any 
dispute, are as follows

Name o f the 
Statue Nature o f dues Amount 

(Rs. in lacs)
Period to which  

the am ount 
relates

Forum where 
Dispute is 
pending

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Income tax on certain 
disallowances etc.

32.22 2007-08 CIT (Appeals) 
Kolkata

(X)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(XV)

(xvi)
(xvii)

(xix)
(XX)

(xxi)

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred 
cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.
The Company has no outstanding dues in respect of financial institution, bank or debenture 
holders.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and 
records produced to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of 
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society and 
therefore, clause 4(xiii) of the Order is not applicable.
In respect of dealing in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, in our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, proper records have been maintained 
of the transactions and contracts and timely entries have been made therein. The shares, 
securities, debentures and other investments have been held by the Company, in its own name.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.
The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been 
used for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year to parties or 
companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.
The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.
Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of 
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, 
we report that no fraud bn or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

Place: Kolkata 
Dated; May 31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm Registration No. 301003E 

Chartered Accountants 
Per SAN JO Y  K  GUPTA 

Partner
Membership No. 54968



B A L A N C E  S H E E T

L I A B I L I T I E S Schedule

SHARE CAPITAL A ’

RESERVES AND SURPLUS B’

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS C’

As at 31st 
March, 2011 

Rs.

7,90,87,500

6,43,99,57,623

24,03,38,108

As at 31st 
March, 2010 

Rs.

7,90,87,500

6,23,05,97,855

23,85,50,468

ACCOUNTING POLICIES & 
NOTESTO ACCOUNTS

‘G ’

Note; Schedules ‘A’ to ‘G’ referred to above form an 
integral part of the Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date.

6,75,93,83,231 6,54,82,35,823

Place: Kolkata 
Dated; May 31,201 1

ForS.R.BATLIBOI&CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E 

Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOYK GUPTA 

Partner
Membership No. 54968



A S  A T  M A R C H  3 1 ,2 0 1 1

A S S E T S Schedule
As at 31st 

March, 2011 
Rs.

As at 31 st 
March, 2010 

Rs.

FIXED ASSETS ‘D’ 18,60,015 20,12,881

INVESTMENTS ‘E ’ 6,70,11,68,752 6,50,37,10,294

DEFERREDTAX ASSET - 24,16,469

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS ‘F’ 5,63,54,464 4,00,96,179
& ADVANCES

6,75,93,83,231 6,54,82,35,823

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. D. DALMIA
Secretary

R. A. MAKHARIA
Executive Director

B. K. BIRLA
Director



P R O F IT  A N D  L O S S  A C C O U N T  F O R

2010-11 2009-10
Rs. Rs. Rs.

To Payments to and provisions for employees:
Salaries, Bonus etc. 41,56,972 29,26,042
Gratuity 9,87,000 9,04,000
Contribution to Provident and other funds 6,70,908 5,29.761
Employees'Welfare Expenses 2,32,723 1,94,388

60,47,603 45,54,191
» Rent 5,83,466 5,78,073
» Rates & Taxes 19,61,408 19,89,002

L e ss : Recoveries 12,79,332 16,44,271

6,82,076 3,44,731
n Insurance 10,947 13,952
n Building Maintenance & Service Expenses 66,15,979 62,78,430
n Auditors' Remuneration

As Auditors :
Audit Fee 1,65,000 1,30,000
For Limited Reviews 99,000 78,000
For Expenses etc. 54,588 45,441

In other manner:
For Certificates etc. 1,35,000 75,000

4,53,588 3,28,441
n Directors' Fees 11,40,000 8,00,000
n Miscellaneous Expenses 17,86,587 20,35,534
n Loss on Fixed Assets sold / Discarded 8,271 -

» Depreciation 1,58,483 1,96,849
n Interest to Income tax department for earlier years 28,45,000 2,68,268
» Provision for Non Performing Assets 76,884 -
» Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 13,651 -

(Refer Note No. 18 on Schedule “G”)
n Provision for Diminution in value of current Investments 1,68,81,244 -
n Balance carried down (Subject to taxation) 44,65,69,912 47,69,98,476

48,38,73,691 49,23,96,945



T H E Y E A R  E N D E D  M A R C H  31, 2011

Rs.

Interest (Gross)

From Banks [Tax deducted at source 
Rs. 28,643 (Rs. 10,704)]

On Loans & Deposits with Others

2,86,433

5,447

2010-11
Rs.

By Income from Investments (Other than Trade)

Dividend:

- On Long Term Investments 43,99,59,653

- On Cu rrent I nvestments 1,53,93,021

2,91,880

2009-10
Rs.

44,81,30,882

1,60,00,291

45,53,52,674 46,41,31,173

1,07,040

1,882

1,08,922

Rent (Gross)

Tax deducted at source Rs. 15,40,420 
(Rs. 27,46,041)

Service charges on rented properties

Miscellaneous Receipts

Profit on redemption of L)nits(Net)

(Current Investments-other than Trade)

Provision for Non performing Assets no 
longer required written back (Net)

Provision for diminution in value of Unquoted 

Investments no longer required written back

1,25,29,204

33,22,314

1,58,51,518

1,16,973

1,22,60,646

1,23,61,589

47,01,092

1,70,62,681

26,504

2,16,680

43,607

1,08,07,378

48,38,73,691 49,23,96,945



P R O F IT  A N D  L O S S  A C C O U N T  F O R

Rs.
To Provision for Taxation

Current [Including Rs. Nil (Rs. 1,14,95,284 50,00,000
for earlier years)]

MAT Credit (Entitlement) in respect of earlier 
years
Deferred Tax Charge 24,16,469

Transfer to Special Reserve 
Proposed Dividend
On 79,08,750 shares @ Rs. 25 (Rs. 25) per share

Provision for Tax on Dividend 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

2010-11
Rs.

74,16,469
8.79.00.000 

19,77,18,750

3,20,74,925
5.00.00.000 

75,75,35,482

2009-10
Rs.

1,60,95,284

(79,77,343)

13,14,720
94,32,661

9.36.00.000 
19,77,18,750

3,28,38,613
5.00.00.000 

68,60,75,714

Earning Per Share (Face value Rs.10 each) 
Basic & Diluted
(Refer Note No. 12 on Schedule 'G ')

1,13,26,45,626 1,06,96,65,738

55.53 59.12

Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts ; As per Schedule 'G' attached.

Note : Schedule G’ referred to above form an 
integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

As per our report of even date.

Place: Kolkata 
Dated; May 31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E  

Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOY K GUPTA 

Partner
Membership No. 54968



T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  M A R C H  31, 2011  (C o n td )

2010-11
Rs.

2009-10
Rs.

By Balance brought down 44,65,69,912 47,69,98,476

Balance as per last account 68,60,75,714 59,26,67,262

1,13,26,45,626 1,06,96,65,738

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. D. DALMIA
Secretary

R. A. MAKHARIA
Executive Director

B. K. BIRLA
Director



C A S H  F L O W  S T A T E M E N T  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  M A R C H  3 1 , 2 0 1 1

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

2010-11
Rs.

2009-10
Rs.

Net Prolit before Tax : 44,65,69,912
Adjustment for :

Dividend Income (45,53,52,674)
Interest Income (2,91,880)
Profit on redemption of units (1,22,60,646)
Depreciation 1,58,483
Provision for diminution in value of current investments 1,68,81,244 
Provision for Non Performing Assets 76,884
Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 13,651
Loss on Fixed Assets sold / Discarded 8,271
Provision for diminution in value of investments 
No longer required written back 
Provision against Non-performing Assets
(Net of excess provision written back) ____________-

(B)

Operating Profit before working capital changes:
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Loans, Trade &
Other Receivables

Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations:
Income Taxes paid (Net of Refunds)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Dividend Received 
Interest Received 
Sale/Redemption of Investments 
Purchase of Investments

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(41,96,755)
18,75,980

(1,64,62,920)

(1,87,83,695)
(34,40,388)

(2,22,24,083)

(13,888)
45,53,52,674

2,91,880
15,86,65,352

(36,07,44,410)

25,35,51,608

47,69,98,476

(46,41,31,173)
(1,08,922)
(2,16,680)

1,96,849

(1,08,07,378)

(43,607)

18,87,565

12,30,862

(21,06,094)

10,12,333
(1,65,21,082)

(1,55,08,749)

(29,348)
46,41,31,173

1,08,922
61,80,94,456

(83,59,24,098)

24,63,81,105



C A S H  F L O W  S T A T E M E N T  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  M A R C H  3 1 ,  2 0 1 1

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividend Paid 
Tax on Dividend Paid

2010-11
Rs.

(19,70,57,053)
(3,28,38,613)

NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (22,98,95,666)

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
(A+B+C) 14,31,859

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - OPENING BALANCE* 23,96,854

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING BALANCE* 38,28,713 #

*Represenfs Cash and Bank Balances as indicated in Schedule - F 
# Includes Rs. 12,71,547 (Rs. 6,09,850) lying in Unpaid Dividend Account

2009-10
Rs.

(19,71,08,900)
(3,36,02,302)

(2,30,71,202)

1,61,154

22,35,700

23,96,854

As per our Report of even date.

P lace: Kolkata 
Dated . May 31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm Registration No. 301003E  
Chartered Accountants 
Per SAN JO Y  K  GUPTA 
Partner
Membership No. 54968

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. A. M AKH AR IA
Executive Director

B. K. B IRLA
Director

B. D. DALM IA
Secretary



S C H E D U L E S  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F  T H E  B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  AT  M A R C H  31, 2011

(Amount in Rs.)
SCHEDULE A'

SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED
90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

As at 31st 
March, 2011

9,00,00,000

As at 31 st 
March, 2010

9,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
79,08,750 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid up

7,90,87,500 7,90,87,500

NOTE : Out of the above Subscribed Capital, 75,38,750 Shares have been issued as fully paid-up 
Bonus Shares by Capitalisation of Securities Premium and General Reserve.

SCHEDULE B' 

RESERVES & SURPLUS 

Investment Reserve
As per last Account 3,76,41,67,570 3,76,41,67,570

3,76,41,67,570 3,76,41,67,570

General Reserve
As per last Account
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss Account

99,74,14,571
5,00,00,000

94,74,14,571
5,00,00,000

1,04,74,14,571 99,74,14,571

Special Reserve
As per last Account
A d d ; Transfer from Profit & Loss Account

78,29,40,000
8,79,00,000

68,93,40,000
9,36,00,000

87,08,40,000 78,29,40,000

Surplus as per Profit & Loss Account 75,75,35,482 68,60,75,714

6,43,99,57,623 6,23,05,97,855



S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F  T H E  B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  AT M A R C H  31, 2011

(Amount in Rs.)
SCHEDULE C'

As at 31st As at 31 st

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Goods, Services, Expenses etc. 

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises

March, 2011 March, 2010

(Refer Note No.19 on schedule “G”) — —

Due to Others 18,95,970 9,68,405

Sundry Deposits

Investor Education and Protection Fund ( Payable when due)

6,78,505 6,78,505

Unpaid Dividend 12,71,547 6,09,850

Other Liabilities 1,42,760 3,33,345

-B. PROVISIONS

39,88,782 25,90,105

Gratuity 48,04,000 39,64,000
Leave liability 17,38,000 14,39,000

Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 
(Refer Note No. 18 of Schedule “G”)

13,651 -

Proposed Dividend 19,77,18,750 19,77,18,750

Tax on Proposed Dividend 3,20,74,925 3,28,38,613

23,63,49,326 23,59,60,363

24,03,38,108 23,85,50,468



SCHEDULE D' 

FIXED ASSETS

S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F T H E

GROSSBLOCK

DESCRIPTICN 
C F  A SSE T S

As at 
01.04.2010 Additions

Deductions/
Adjustments

As at 
31.03.2011

Freehold Land 7,28,203 — — 7,28,203

Buildings 49,55,141 — — 49,55,141

Furniture, Air-conditioners, 
Electrical Installations etc. 17,90,943 13,888 2,95,297 15,09,534

Cffice Equipments 18,015 — 10,450 7,565

Vehicles 6,92,000 -- -- 6,92,000

81,84,302 13,888 3,05,747 78,92,443

Frevious year's Total 81,54,954 29,348 — 81,84,302

NOTES:

1.

2.

The above cost of land represents 36.94% undivided share in respect of land at 10, Camac 
Street, Kolkata and Buildings includes Rs. 3,50,000 and Rs. 46,05,141 being the cost of 28.125% 
and 36.94% undivided share in respect of Buildings at 15, India Exchange Place, Kolkata and 
10, Camac Street, Kolkata respectively in joint ownership with others.

Furniture includes Rs. 12,98,302 (Rs. 13,44,997) being the cost of 36.94% undivided share 
of the Furniture, Air-conditioners, Electrical Installations etc. at 10, Camac Street, Kolkata 
in joint ownership with others.



B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  A T  M A R C H  31, 2011

(Amount in Rs.)

DEPRECIAT ION N ETBLO C K

Upto
01.04.2010

Forthe
year

Deductions/
Adjustments

Upto
31.03.2011

A sa t
31.03.2011

As at 
31.03.2010

— — — — 7,28,203 7,28,203

41,47,991 40,358 — 41,88,349 7,66,792 8,07,150

16,71,376 25,449 2,87,026 14,09,799 99,735 1,19,567

18,015 — 10,450 7,565 — —

3,34,039 92,676 — 4,26,715 2,65,285 3,57,961

61,71,421 1,58,483 2,97,476 60,32,428 18,60,015 20,12,881

59,74,572 1,96,849 — 61,71,421 20,12,881



S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F T H E  B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  AT  M A R C H  31, 2011

SCHEDULE E'

INVESTMENTS (Other Than Trade)

LONGTERM (AT COST)
QUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares
Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited 

Aditya Birla Chemicals (India) Limited 

Century Textiles & Industries Limited 

Cimmco Birla Limited

Grasim Industries Limited 

Hindalco Industries Limited 

Hindustan Everest Tools Limited 

Jay Shree Tea & Industries Limited

KDDL Limited 
Kesoram Industries Limited 
Kesoram Textile Mills Limited 
Mangalam Cement Limited 

Crient Paper & Industries Limited 

Sutlej Textile & Industries Limited 

SIL Investment Limited 

Tanfac Industries Limited 

Tata Steel Limited 

Ultra Tech Cement Limited

Umi Special Steels Limited 

Zenith Birla Limited

Zuari Industries Limited

(Amount in Rs.)
Nos. Face 

Value 
per Share

As at 31st 
March, 2011

As at 31st 
March, 2010

1,87,098 10 2,94,07,786 2,94,07,786

3,90,000 10 40,95,000 40,95,000

3,42,20,520 10 1,58,57,50,974 1,58,57,50,974

70,780 (3) 10 4,95,460 4,95,460

(3,53,900)

43,00,293 (4) 10 61,47,76,811 1,42,21,06,895

2,91,85,398 1 1,83,63,31,900 1,83,63,31,900

52,175 10 4,40,879 4,40,879

2,844 5 41,238 41,238

(1.422)

35,000 10 2,97,500 2,97,500
24,15,750 10 6,24,47,137 6,24,47,137
24,15,750 2 6,03,938 6,03,938
11,20,000 10 75,60,000 75,60,000

4,25,260 1 43,33,360 43,33,360

1,14,309 10 24,04,209 24,04,209

1,14,309 10 19,96,687 19,96,687

4,98,000 10 56,27,400 56,27,400

62,90,149 10 1,16,81,79,683 1,16,81,79,683

24,57,309 (4) 10 80,73,28,026

(-)
1,00,000 10 1,70,000 1,70,000

3,432 (5) 10 15,078 15,078

(2,860)

4,34,000 10 78,98,800
6,14,02,01,866

78,98,800

6,14,02,03,924



SCHEDULE' E' —  (Contd.)

UNQUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares

Birla Buildings Limited 
Birla Consultants Limited 
Indo Thai Synthetics Co Limited 
Bangkok (Thailand)

Indo-Phil Textile Mills Inc., Manila 
(Republic of Phillippines)

Nos.

15.000
12.000 

2,07,900

2,11,248

Face Value 
per Share

10
10
10

Baht

10
Pesos

As at 31st 
March, 2011

1,52,258
1,20,000

11,41,857

2,02,692

(Amount in Rs.) 
As at 31 st 

March, 2010

1,52,258 
1,20,000 

11,41,857

2,02,692

The Eastern Economist Limited 400 100 40,101 40,101

The Hindustan Times Limited 1,92,000 10 2,17,948 2,17,948

The Industry House Limited 2,812 100 1,89,409 1,89,409

Gmmco Limited 68,249 10 3,41,24,500 3,41,24,500

3,61,88,765 3,61,88,765

Equity Shares
In Subsidiary Companies
PIC Properties Limited 50,002 10 5,00,020 5,00,020

5,00,020 5,00,020

CURRENT INVESTMENTS
UNQUOTED
Mutual Funds Units

Birla Sunlife DividendYield Plus -Growth 3,63,592 10 3,00,00,000 —

( - )
Birla Sunlife Frontline Equity - Growrh 1,39,395 (6) 10 1,30,00,000 2,25,21,039

(2,92,899)
Birla Suniife Infrastructure Fund-Div. ( - ) 10 — 2,37,25,358

(18,88,290)
Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund-Div. 21,70,834 (6) 10 4,92,53,990 2,36,01,315

(11,12,329)
Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund-Growth 3,07,637 10 3,00,99,222 3,00,99,222

D SP  Black Rock Equity Fund-Div. 3,21,229 (6) 10 1,60,44,859 —

(- )
D SP  Black Rock Equity Fund-Growth 16,62,040 10 2,25,35,605 2,25,35,605

DSP Black Rock Small & Midcap Fund 13,79,131 (6) 10 2,65,00,000 _

-Growth ( - )
C/F 18,74,33,676 12,24,82,539



SCHEDULE 'E ' —  (Contd.)
Mutual Funds

DSP  Black Rock Top -100 Fund 12,35,863
B/F
10

As at 31st 
March, 2011 
18,74,33,676 
2,35,50,611

As at 31 st 
March, 2010 
12,24,82,539 
2,20,92,598

-Dividend (11,66,411) 
Franklin India Bluechip Fund - Growth 66,732

( - )
HDFC Equity Fund-Growth 72,405

(6) 10 1,50,00,000 —

10 1,60,19,149 1,60,19,149
HDFC Top - 200 - Dividend — 10 — 2,20,96,381

(5,73,332)
H DFCTop-200 -Growth — 10 - 2,01,83,476

(1,13,956)
ICICI Prudential Discovery Fund 10,56,510 (6) 10 2,14,70,588 _ _ _

- Dividend {— ) 
ICICI Prudential Dynamic Plan 1,97,717 10 2,00,00,000 _ _

- Cumulative (— ) 
ICICI Prudential FocusedFund-Growth 12,37,031 10 1,60,19,545 1,60,19,545
ICICI Prudential - Growth 1,90,052 10 1,75,00,000 1,75,00,000
ICICI Prudential Infrastructure Fund 3,67,872 (6) 10 1,20,00,000 —

- Growth (— )
Kotak Mid-Cap - Dividend 5,13,321

( - )
Kotak Mid-Cap - Growth 7,78,236

( - )
Reliance Banking Fund - Dividend 2,82,490

( - )
Reliance Equity Cpportunities Fund 2,90,512

(6) 10 1,00,00,000

(6) 10 2,00,00,000 —

10 1,06,61,288 —

10 1,00,00,000 ___

-Growth (— ) 
Reliance Growth Fund-Growth 79,938 10 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
Reliance Growth Fund - Dividend 3,32,939 10 1,59,63,840 1,47,29,624

(3,08,544)
Reliance Pharma Fund - Growth 5,48,578 10 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Reliance Regular Saving Fund 4,64,776 (6) 10 1,08,46,375 —

- Dividend (— ) 
Reliance Regular Saving Fund- Growth 10,61,372 10 2,56,94,273 2,56,94,273
Sundram Select Focus - Appreciation 1,14,651

( - )
Sundram Select Mid Cap - Appreciation 12,130

( - )
Sundram Smile - Dividend 7,56,435

( - )
Sundram Smile - Growth 2,07,342

( - )

10 1,00,00,000 —

(6) 10 20,00,000 —

(6) 10 1,00,00,000 —

(6) 10 70,00,000 —

C/F 51,11,59,345 32,68,17,585



SCHEDULE'E' —  (Contd.) 

Mutual Funds

UTI Mid Cap - Dividend

UTI Mid Cap - Growth

UTI Master Value Fund 
- Growth

3,86,698
( - )

3,10,366
( - )

1,96,618

(6)

(6)

B/F
10

10

10

As at 31st 
March, 2011 
51,11,59,345 
1,00,00,000

1,00,00,000

1,00,00,000

As at 31st 
March, 2010 
32,68,17,585

*NAV as on 31st March, 2011 - Rs.58,13,46,546/- 
(Rs.34,63,34,627/-)

54,11,59,345* 32,68,17,585

6,71,80,49,996 6,50,37,10,294
L e s s : Provision for diminution in value

of Unquoted investments 1,68,81,244 —

Aggregate amount of Investments

6,70,11,68,752 6,50,37,10,294

Quoted 6,14,02,01,866 6,14,02,03,924

Unquoted 56,09,66,886 36,35,06,370

6,70,11,68,752 6,50,37,10,294

Market Value of Quoted Investments 36,54,12,72,744 40,43,62,64,436

Notes: (1) Besides the above, the following investments 
were purchased and sold during the year

Name of the Mutual Fund
Birla Sunlife Medium Term Plan - Fortnightly Dividend 

Birla Sunlife Savings Fund - Institutional - Daily dividend 

Birla Sunlife Short Term Fund 1 - Daily Dividend 

D SP  Black Rock Floating Rate Fund 

HDFC Cash Mang.Treasury

ICICI Prud. Flexi. Income Plan Premium - Daily Devidend 

Reliance Money Manager Fund 

Reliance Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend 

Sundram Ultra ST  Fund Retail - Dividend

No. of Units 
Face Value 2010-11 2009-10

10 —  22,39,340

10 —  30,07,877

10 —  51,10,869

10 —  22,46,551

10 —  80,44,921

10 —  65,47,292

1000 —  1,73,312

10 —  40,28,058

10 56,29,172 —



SCHEDULE E‘ —  (Contd.)

(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

The following shares, although in Physical possession of the company have not been 
indicated above since the value thereof has been written off in earlier years.

QUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares Nos. Face Value Rs.

Jiyajeerao Cotton Mills Limited 150 10
Kalyan Sundaram Cement Industries Limited 50,000 10
Saurashtra Chemicals Limited 1,65,874 10
Tungbhadra Industries Limited 1,865 10

UNQUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares
Bombay Industrial Traders Limited (In liquidation) 915 100

Hind Cycles Limited (In liquidation) 400 100

Industrial Plants Limited (in liquidation) 75,000 10

Mckenzies Limited 753 10

In Subsidiary Companies
Atlas Iron and Alloys Limited (in liquidation) 

Debentures
Hind Cycles Limited (In liquidation)

UNQUOTED (Partly Paid)
Equity Shares

Central Distributors Limited
(in Liquidation) (Paid up Rs.7.50 per share)

72,000

66

1,284

10

100

10

Recieved on consolidation of shares on reduction of capital under a Scheme.

43,00,293 Equity Shares of Samruddhi Cement Limited were received during the year on 
demerger of Cement Business of Grasim Industries Limited under a Scheme of Arrangement 
which has subsquently been merged with Ultratech Cement Limited and 24,57,309 Equity 
Shares of Ultratech Cement Limited were received against the company’s holding in Samruddhi 
Cement Limited.

Includes 572 Equity Shares being Bonus Shares received during the year.

Indicates Securities where provision towards dimunition in the value of Investments has been 
made.



S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F T H E  B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  AT  M A R C H  31, 2011 

SCHEDULE F
(Amount in Rs.) 

As at 31st As at 31st

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
A. CURRENT ASSETS 

Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured, Considered Good except as stated othenvise) 
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding 
six months 7,68,838
Other Debts 6,51,224

March, 2011 March, 2010

Less : Provision for Non performing assets

‘Including Rs. 7,68,838 (Rs. Nil) considered 
Non-performing Assets

Cash & Bank Balances
Cash on hand
With Scheduled Banks on:
Current Account

Unpaid Dividend Account

B. LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good 
except as stated otherwise)
a) Loans

Loan to PIC Properties Ltd. 
a Subsidiary Company (Free of interest)

b) Advances:
Advance payment of Income Tax 
Tax deducted at source and refunds 
Receivable (after adjusting provision)
MAT Credit Entitlement
Other Advances recoverable in cash or Kind or
for value to be received
Less : Provision for Non performing assets

Sundry Deposits
Deposit against demand under dispute 
(Refer Note No. 3 on Schedule “G ”)

14,20,062
76.884

1,85,48,280
25,48,676
69,27,803

13,43,178

7,307

25,49,859
12,71,547

12.40.838
12.40.838

12,40,838

18,069

17,68,935

6,09,850

1,11,41,446
72,07,185

2,02,13,280 #,@ 
16,65,000

48,09,183 ** 48,09,183

1,19,30,900 
79,77,343

39.29.582 
16,65,000
22.64.582 
25,48,676
69,27,803 

4,63,73,390 3,16,49,304

5,63,54,464 4,00,96,179

# Including Rs. 16,65,000 (Rs. 16,65,000) ccnsidered Ncn-performing Assets 
** Maximum amcunt due at any time during the year 48,09,183

NOTE :
@ Amcunt due frcm a Director of the Ccmpany - Advances —
Maximum Amcunt due at any time during the year - Advances 48,495

48,09,183

52,274



S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F  T H E  S T A T E M E N T S  O F  A C C O U N T  A S  A T  A N D  

F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  M A R C H  31, 2011

SCHEDULE -  ‘G’

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS :
1. Accounting Policies

i. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared tc comply in all material aspects with the 
mandatory Accounting Standards notified by the Companies Accounting Standards Rule, 
2006 (as amended),the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the directions 
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking Financial Companies. The financial 
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis, 
unless otherwise stated. The accounting policies applied by the Company are consistent 
with those used in the previous year.

ii. Revenue Recognition 
Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established 
by the balance sheet date. Dividend received from Overseas Companies is accounted for, net 
of tax deducted at source.

Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.

Profit on S a le /  Redem ption o f M utual Fund Units
Frofit on Sale / Redemption of Mutual Funds units are accounted for net of security transaction 
tax and exit load.

iii. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements 
and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are 
based upon mangement’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could 
differ from these estimates.

iv. Provisioning on Standard Assets
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide Notification No. DNBS.223/CGM(US)-2011 dated 17th 
January 2011 has issued directions to all NBFCs to make provision of 0.25% standard assets 
with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Company has made contingent provision at the rate of
0.25% on standard assets in accordance with RBI guidelines.

V. Provision I  Write Off against Non Performing Assets
Provision / Write Off against Non Performing Assets are made as per the guidelines prescribed 
by Reserve Bank of India for Non-deposit taking Finance Companies (NBFC-ND).



vi. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. 
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use.

vii. Depreciation
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on reducing balance method atthe rates specified in 
Schedule X IV  of the Companies Act, 1956.
Depreciation on fixed assets added / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata 
basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.

viii. Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any 
indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized 
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the assets.

ix. Investments
a) Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year 

are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as Long Term 
Investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined 
on an individual investment basis.

b) Long-term investments are valued at cost, i.e. book value ofthe investments as reflected 
in the financial statements as on 31®' March, 2003 and for subsequent diminution, 
provision is made by way of adjustment against Investment Reserve in terms of scheme 
of Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court during an earlier year. 
Further, long term investment purchased after 1 st April 2003 are valued at cost. Provision 
for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value 
ofthe investments.

c) Shares held in Overseas Companies are valued at the exchange rates prevailing on 
the date of payment(s).

X. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short­
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

xi. Provision for Retirement benefits
I) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation are defined

contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to Profit and Loss Account of 
the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no obligations 
other than the contribution payable to the respective funds,

ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial 
year.



iii) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation done 
under projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year.

iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not 
deferred.

xii. Earning per share
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

x iii. income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the 
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax 
Act 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between 
taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier 
years.
The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted 
for using the tax rates and laws that have been substaintially enacted as ofthe Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realised. If the company has carryforward unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses, 
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available against which such deferred 
tax asset can be realized.
At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It 
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent it has become reasonably certain or 
virtual certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date. The company 
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to 
the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available.
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the 
Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance 
with the recommendations contained in guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account 
and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same as each balance sheet 
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no 
longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the 
specified period.



xiv. Foreign Currency Transactions

a) initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

b) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are 
reported using the exchange rate at the date ofthe transaction; and non-monetary items 
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 
Shares held in Overseas Companies are valued at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of payment(s).

c) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement/conversion of monetary items are 
recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

d) Foreign Exchange Contracts not intended for trading or speculation purpose 
The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contractsis amortized 
as expenses or income overthe life ofthe respective contracts. Exchange differences 
on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which 
the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for the year.

XV. Assets acquired under lease
For assets acquired under operating lease, rentals payable are charged to the profit & loss 
account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

xvi. Contingencies
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable 
certainty, or in respect of which reliable estimates can not be made are treated as contingent 
and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

xvii. Provision
A  provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value 
and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance 
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.

2. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of -
a) Uncalled liability on partly paid Shares held as Investments Rs. 3,210 (Rs.3210).
b) Income Tax demands for earlier years aggregating to Rs 39,41,335 (Rs.1,69,97,405) 

disputed by the Company/ Income Tax department in appeal.



3. The Company has disputed the claim for recovery of Rs. 15,44,486 plus interest from 1 “ November, 
1973 made by State Bank of India, Bombay in a suit filed against the company on the basis of 
guarantee given in respect ofthe advances made to Hind Cycles Limited against their Cash 
Credit Account by the said Bank. Against the above claim, Rs.69,27,803 have been deposited 
with Debts Recovery Appellate Tribunal pursuant to Hon’ble Bombay High Court Order while 
admitting the writ petition filed by the Company. Pending the High Court judgment in the above 
matter, no provision against the above claim has been made in the accounts.

4. Based on the allowance of certain claims by the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), the 
Company had received interest of R s 1,01,45,274 during the year 2004-2005 from Income Tax 
department for the assessm ent years 1993-94 to 1996-97. However, the department has 
gone into appeal against the above judgment and accordingly, the said interest income 
being a matter of contingency, has been netted off with Income tax refunds receivable under 
Loan andAdvances and has not been credited to the Profit and Loss Account.

5. The Company has given undertaking to some Banks/Financial Institutions for non-disposal of 
its share holdings in the following Bodies Corporate without their approval, till the loans given by 
those banks/institutions are repaid in full by these Bodies Corporate ;-

(i) Aditya Birla Chemicals (India) Ltd. (ii) Tanfac Industries Ltd.

(iii) Aditya Birla Nuvo Ltd. (iv) Mangalam Cement Ltd.

(v) Century Textiles & Industries Ltd. (vi) Kesoram Industries Ltd.

6. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five 
years or more of service is entitled to gratuity on terms not less favourable than the provisions 
of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is unfunded.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the 
Profit & Loss Account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for 
the respective plans.
(i) Net Employee Expense/(benefit) 2010-11 2009-10

Rs. Rs.
Current Sevice Cost 2,28,000 1,89,000
Interest coston benefit obligation 3,17,000 2,63,000
Expected return on plan assets - -

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 4,42,000 4,52,000
Total employer expense recognised in Profit
and Loss Account 9,87,000 9,04,000
Benefit Asset/(Llablllty)
Defined benefit obligation (48,04,000) (39,64,000)
Fair value of Plan Assets — —

Benefit Asset/(Liability) (48,04,000) (39,64,000)
Movement In benefit liability
Opening defined benefit obligation 39,64,000 30,60,000
Interest cost 3,17,000 2,63,000
Current service cost 2,28,000 1,89,000



(Amount in Rs.)
Benefits paid (1,47,000)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 4,42,000 4,52,000
Closing benefit obligation 48,04,000 39,64,000

(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows
Discount rate 8.00% 7.50%
Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

(v) Amount incurred as expense for defined contribution plans
Contribution to Provident / Pension fund 3,63,917 2,70,509
Contribution to Superannuation fund 3,06,991 2,34,991

(vi) The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account 
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor, such as supply and demand in 
the employment market.

(vii) Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows :
Gratuity 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
Defined Benefit Obligaiton 48,04,000 39,64,000 30,60,000 22,57,000
Plan Assets _ _ _  _
Surplus/(Deficit) (48,04,000) (39,64,000) (30,60,000) (22,57,000)
Experience adjustments 69,000 3,57,000 3,16,000 1,24,000
on plan liabilities

The management has relied on the overall actuarial valuation conducted by the actuary.

7. (a) Building maintenance expenses include Salaries Rs. 6,57,983 (Rs.5,92,218), Insurance
Rs. 54,946 (Rs. 65,898) and Electricity Expenses Rs. 39,88,696 (Rs. 38,57,564).

(b) M iscellaneous Expenses includes Directors’ Travelling Expenses Rs. 1,29,788 
(Rs.1,65,142).

8. The Competent Authority under Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 has declared 
excess land of 329.25 sq.mtrs. in respect of land held by the Company at Kolkata and 1,486.87 
sq.mtrs. in respect of land at New Delhi transferred to a subsidiary of the company w.e.f. 
1.4.1985, against which a stay has been granted to the Company by the Appellate Authority 
under the said Act. Further in view of Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Repeal Ordinance 
1999 (No.5 of 1999) dated 11.1.1999, the Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 stands 
repealed in New Delhi as advised to the company by the solicitors.

9. No effect has been given in the accounts in respect ofthe following Equity Shares received by 
way of fully paid Bonus Shares on shares not belonging to the Company and the same are 
being held in trust by the Company :
SI. Name of the Company No. of Equity Shares Face Value per Share (Rs)
(a) Grasim Industries Ltd. 1079 10/-
(b) Hindustan Motors Ltd. 440 10/-
(c) Century Textiles & Industries Ltd 220 10/-
(d) Tungabhadra Industries Ltd. 4 10/-
(e) Hindustan Everest Tools Ltd. 117 10/-



10. Details of Executive Director’s Remuneration
2010-' 1 2009-10

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Salary & Bonus * 23,36,064 17,84,048

Provident Fund Contribution 2.30.400 25,66,464 1.72.800 19,56,848

NOTES:
In addition to the above, the following 

expenses have been incurred for the 

Executive Director:

Rent 5,07,760 5,03,760

Medical Expenses 1,60,000 1,26,538

Superannuation Scheme Contribution 2,88,000 2,16,000

Directors’ Fee 1,20,000 1,00,000

Leave Travel Assistance _2.80J1QQ -

39,22,224 29,03,146

11.

12.

* Excluding taxable value of perquisites Rs. 2,68,405 ( Rs. 2,15,904)
NOTE: A s  the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actual basis for 
the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the executive director is not included above. 

Segment Reporting :
The Company has only one business segment viz. investment and related activities and its 
operations are also confined to one geographical segment i.e. India. As such, no further disclosure 
under Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting” is required.
Basis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share is as under; -

2010-11 2009-10

Profit after Tax as per Profit & Loss Account Rs. 43.91.53.443 46.75.65,815
Weighted average number of Equitv Shares Nos. 79,08,750 79,08.750
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share Rs. 55.53 59.12
Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 10

13. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Name of the related parties where control exits:

Subsidiary Companies PIC Properties Limited
Atlas Iron & Alloys Limited (in Liquidation)

Name of other related parties:
Associate Company 
Key Management Personnel

(b) Aggregate Related Party Disclosures:
Subsidiary Companies 
Loans and advances outstanding 
(PIC Properties Limited)

Century Textiles & Industries Limited 
Shri R.A. Makharia (Executive Director)

2010-11
48,09,183

2009-10
48,09,183



Associate Company 
Dividend Income 
Key IVIanaaement Personnel
Remuneration 39,22,224

14. The break up of deferred tax asset as on 31 ®* March, 2011 is as follows
As at 

31st March 
2011

18,82,12,860 15,39,92,340

29,03,146

As at 
31st March 

2010

Rs. Rs.

Timing Difference in depreciable assets 68,656

Expenses allowable against taxable income in future years 17,94,742

Provision for Non-Performing Assets 5,53,071

TOTAL -  24,16,469

15.

16.

Information pursuant to the provisions of Paragraphs 3 & 4 of Part II of Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable):-
Earnings in Foreign Exchange -  Dividend (Net of Tax) Rs. NIL (NIL)

Information required in terms of Paragraphs 13 of Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting 
or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 :- 
Liabilities side
(i) Loans and advances availed by th non-banking financial company inclusive of interet 
accrues thereon but not paid :

Particulars Amount Amount
outstanding as at overdue as at
31st March 2011 31st March 2010

Rs. Rs.
(a) Debentures

-  Secured _ _
(-) (-)

-  Unsecured (other than falling within the / \ -
meaning of public deposits) (-) H

(b) Deferred Credits — —
(-) (-)

(c) Terms Loans
(-) (-)

(d) Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowing — _
(-) (-)

(e) Commercial Paper — _
(-) (-)

(f) Cash Credit from Banks — —
(-) (-)

TOTAL —

(-) (-)



Assets side :

Break-up of Loans and Advances, including billls receivables (otherthan those included 
in (iv) below;

Particulars Amount 
outstanding as at 
31st March 2011

Rs.

(a) Secured
H

(b) Unsecured 5,25,25,751
(3,76,99,325)

TOTAL 5,25,25,751
(3,76,99,325)

(iii) Break-up Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and hypothecation loans counting towards 
AFC  activities:

Particulars Amount 
outstanding as at 
31st March 2011

Rs.

(i) Lease Assets including Lease Rentals _

under Sundry Debtors (-)

(ii) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges
under Sundry Debtors {-)

(iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards
AFC  activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been -

repossessed (-)
(b) Loans other than above -

H

TOTAL —

(-)



(iv) Break-up Investments:

Particulars Amount 
outstanding as at 
31st March 2011

Current investments Rs.

(1) Quoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity -

(-)
(b) Preference -

(-)

(ii) Debentures and Bonds —

(-)

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds 52,42,78,101
(32,68,17,585)

(iv) Government Securities _

(-)

(v) Others (please specify) —

(-)

(2) Unquoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity -

(-)
(b) Preference -

(-)

(ii) Debentures and Bends —

(-)

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds _

(-)

(iv) Government Securities

(-)

(v) Others (please specify) —

(-)



Long-Term Investments;

Particulars Amount 
outstanding as at 
31st March 2011

Current Investments Rs.

(1) Quoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity 6,14,02,01,866

(b) Preference (6,14,02,03,924)

(ii) Debentures and Bonds _

(-)

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds —

(-)

(iv) Government Securities _

(-)

(v) Others (please specify) -

(-)

(2) Unquoted
(i) Shares (a) Equity 3,66,88,785

(b) Preference (3,66,88,785)

(ii) Debentures and Bonds —

H

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds

(-)

(iv) Government Securities _

(v) Others (please specify) —

{-)

TOTAL 6,70,11,68,752*
(6,50,37,10,294)

‘ Net of Provisions



(v) Borrower group-wise classification of all loans and advances (net of provision):

Category Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties Rs. Rs. Rs.

(a) Subsidiaries -- 48,09,183 48,09,183

( - ) (48,09,183) (48,09,183)

(b) Companies in the same Group — — —

( - ) ( - ) ( - )

(c) Other related parties -- -- —

( - ) ( - ) ( - )

2. Other than related parties -- 4,63,73,390 4,63,73,390

( - ) (3,16,49,304) (3,16,49,304)

TOTAL -- 5,11,82,573 5,11,82,573

{ - ) (3,64,58,487) (3,64,58,487)

(vi) Investor group-wise classification of all investmen 

unquoted) is as follows

s in shares and securities (both quoted and

Category Market Book Value
Value/Break up or (Net of
fair value or NAV Provisions)

Rs. Rs.

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries 26,75,927 5,00,020
(22,68,050) (5,00,020)

(b) Companies in the same Group { - ) ( - )
( - ) ( - )

(c) Other related parties 11,99,60,03,286 1,58,57,50,974
(17,41,82,44,680) (1,58,57,50,974)

2. Other than related parties 25,71,98,40,399 5,11,49,17,758
(23,56,61,89,685) (4,91,74,59,300)

TOTAL 37,71,85,19,612 6,70,11,68,752

(40,98,67,02,415) (6,50,37,10,294)



(vii). Other information

Particulars Rs.

i) Gross Non-performing Assets

a) Related Parties

( - )

b) Other than related parties 24,33,838
(16,65,000)

ii) Net Non-performing Assets

a) Related Parties

( - )

b) Other than related parties 6,91,954

( - )

iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
(-),

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Assets given on operating lease :

The company has leased out certain buildings on operating lease. The lease term is for 2-3 
years and thereafter renewable. The rent is not based on any contingencies. There are no 
restrictions imposed by lease agreements. The lease are cancelable.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide Notification No. DNBS. 223/CGM (US) - 2011 dated 
January 17,2011 has been issued directions to all NFBCs to make provision of 0.25% on the 
standard assets with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Company has made provision of 
Rs. 13,651/- on the standard assets as on March 31, 2011.

Based on the information’s/documents available with the Company, no creditor is covered 
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. A s a result, no interest 
provisions/payments have been made by the company to such creditors, if any, and no 
disclosures are made in these accounts.

As per Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by Hon’ble Calcutta High Court in earlier year, long 
term investments are valued at cost, i.e. book value of the investments as reflected in the 
financiai statements as on 31st March, 2003 and for subsequent diminution, provision is made 
by way of adjustment against Investment Reserve as indicated in Note no. 1 (ix)(b) above. There 
has no impact on the profit for the current year and previous year due to above accounting 
treatment.

Figures given in the brackets represents those of Previous year and same have been re-grouped 
where necessary to confirm to this year’s classification.



22. Additional disclosure required by NBFC-ND-SI in terms of the notification issued by RBI on 
August 1, 2008, are as follows:

(a) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2011 As at 31®'March 2010

(I) C RA R (% ) 96.60 96.42

(ii) C R A R -T ie r  I Capital (%) 40.82 38.88

C RAR-T ier II Capital (%) 55.78 57.54

(b) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect.

Category As at 31st 
March 2011

As at 31st 
March 2010

(a) Direct exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residen 
tial property that is or will be occupied by the 
borrower or that is rented; (Individual housing 
loans up to Rs. 15 lacs may be shown separately)

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial 
real estates (office buildings, retail space, 
multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily 
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial 
premises, industrial or warehouse space, 
hotels, land acquisition, development and 
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include 
non-fund based (NFB) limits:

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities 
(MBS) and other securitised exposures -

a. Residential, - -

b. Commercial Real Estate. - -

(b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on 
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance 
Companies (HFCs).



(c) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities ; (Amount inRs.)

1 d a y  to
30 /31
d ays
(O ne
m onth)

O ve r 1 
m onth  to  
2
m on ths

O ve r 2  
m onths  
to  3  
m onths

O ver 3  
m onths  
to  6
m onths

O ver 6  
m onths  
to  one  
y e a r

O ve r 1 
y e a r to  3  
y e a rs

O ve r 3  
y e a r  to  5  
y e a rs

O ve r 5  
y e a rs

Total

Liabilities - - - - - - - - -

Assets

Advances 13 ,50 ,67 f

(1,70,946)

3 ,0 0 0

(4,71,051)

5 7 ,4 2 3

(25,644)

63 ,4 2 3

(7,69,787)

2 ,8 6 ,7 4 ,7 1 4

(19,18,124)

8 0 ,9 0 ,8 5 2

(2,07,08,243 (1,49,668)

1 ,42 ,85 ,661

(1,34,85,662)
5 ,25 ,25 ,751

(3,76,99,325)

Investments - - - - 5 2 ,4 2 ,7 8 ,1 0 1

(32,68,17,585)

- - 6,17,68,90,651

16,17,68,92,709)

6,70,11,68,752

6,50,37,10,294)

Note: Maturity of Current Investments and Long Term Investments has been considered in 'Over 6 
months to 1 year’ and 'Over 5 years’ category respectively

Signatures to Schedules ‘A’ to ‘G ’

Place: Kolkata 
Dated :May31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration No.301003E 
Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOY K GUPTA 
Partner
Membership No. 54968

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
R. A. MAKHARIA B. K. BIRLA
Executive Director Director

B. D. DALMIA
Secretary



D IR E C T O R S ' R E P O R T
TO THE M EM B ERS

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting before you the Accounts of the Company forthe year 
ended 31 st March, 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS : Rs.

Gross Profit for the year 5,50,301

L e ss : Depreciation 48,364

5,01,937

Add : Balance brought forward from previous year 17,39,643

22,41,580

Less: Provision for Taxation (A.Y. 2011-2012) 94,060

21,47,520

Your Directors report a Gross Profit of Rs. 5,50,301/- for the year and a Net Profit of Rs. 5,01,937/- 
after depreciation. The Directors refrain from declaring any Equity Dividend for the year.

DIRECTORS :

Shri S. N. Neotia retires by rotation from the Board and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company had no employees in the category specified under Section 217 (2-A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

AUDITORS :
M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, the auditors of the Company retire and are eligible for 
re-appointment.

G.K.TULSIAN 
S. N. NEOTIA

Dated : The 30th day of April, 2011 Directors



A U D IT O R S ' R E P O R T
TO THE SH AREH O LDERS

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of PIC PROPERTIES LIMITED as at 31 st March, 2011, 

the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed 

thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. These 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free of material mis-statement. An audit includes examining, on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides 

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Crder, 2003 issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the 

Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said order.

We report that:

1. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the Companies Act, 1956, (as amended) 

have been kept by the Compny so far as appears from our examination of those books; and

3. The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the Books of Account.

4. In our Cpinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statment dealt 

with by this report are in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Sub- 

Section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.



5. On the basis of written representation received from the Directors as on 31 st March, 2011 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors 

is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2011 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

274 (1) (g) of the said Act.

6. In our opinion and to the best of our informaton and according to the explanations given to us, 

the said accounts read with notes thereon, give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India ;

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 

March, 2011; and

(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the company for the year 

ended on that date; and

(c) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the company for the year 

ended on that date.

1-B, Old Post Office Street 
Kolkata
Dated, the 30th day of April, 2011

For SINGHl & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

S. K. Kothaii 
Partner

Membership No. 54157 
(Firm Registration No. 302049E)



A N N E X U R E  T O  T H E  A U D IT O R S ' R E P O R T

I. In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Ccmpany has maintained prcper reccrds shewing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situaticn cf Fixed Assets.

(b) As explained tc us fixed assets were physically verified by management and nc material 
discrepancies have been ncticed cn physical verificaticn as ccnfirmed by the Management.

(c) Nc substantial part cf Fixed Assets has been dispcsed cff during the year, which has 
bearing cn the gcing ccncern assumpticn.

II. The Ccmpany is net trading in any gccds. Therefore, the prcvisicns cf clause 4(ii) cf the 
Ccmpanies (Auditcr’s Repcrt) (Amendment) Order, 2004 relating Inventcries are net applicable 
tc the Ccmpany.

III. The ccmpany has taken unsecured lean frcm its hclding ccmpany. The maximum amcunt 
invclved was Rs.48,09,182/- and in the year-end balance was Rs.48,09,182. As explained this 
lean is interest free and repayable cn demand. In cur cpinicn other terms and conditions of 
such loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

IV. On the basis of checks carried out during the course of audit and as per explanations given to 
us, we are of the opinion that there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate 
with the size of the company and the nature of its business. During the course of our audit, no 
major weakness has been noticed in the internal controls.

V. No transactions has been entered into by the company which are required to be entered in the 
register maintained in pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act and hence Clause 4 (v) 
of the order is not applicable to the company.

V I. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits from the public during the year to which the provision of Section 58A and 58AA of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed thereunder apply.

VII. The provisions of clause 4(viii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Ammendment) Order, 
2004 relating to Internal Audit is not applicable to the company.

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records has 
not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause (d) of sub-section (I) of the 
Section 209 of the Companies Act.

IX. In respect of statutory and other dues :

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the company has been 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State 
Insurance, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service 
Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax and Cess were in areas, as at 31 March, 2011 for 
a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

X. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year also in immediately 
preceding financial year.

XI. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to Financial Institutions or Banks or 
Debenture holders.

XII. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of Shares, Debentures and other 
securities.

XIII. The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society.

XIV. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts and records maintained by the Company and 
states that prima-facie, proper records have been maintained of the transactions and contracts 
relating to purchase of investments and timely entries have been made therein. All the investments 
have been held by the company in its own name.

XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

XVI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any 
term loan.

XVII. On the basis of our examination of the Balance Sheet, the funds raised on short-term basis 
have not been used for long-term investment and vice-versa.

XVIII. During the year under Audit, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to 
parties or companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companias 
Act, 1956.

XIX. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and hence the question of disclosure 
and verification of end use of such monies does not arise.

XX. The Company has not raised any money by way of Fublic Issue during the year.

XXI. Based upon the audit procedures performed and on the basis of information and explanations 
provided by the Management, we report that no fraud, on or by the company has been noticed 
or reported during the year.

For SINGHl & CO.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 302049E
1 -B, Old Post Office Street, S. K. Kothari
Kolkata. Partner
Dated, the 301h day of April, 2011 Membership No. 54157



As on 31.3.10 
Rs.

9.00.000

1.00.000 

10,00,000

5,00,020

28,187
17,39,643

200

48,09,182

2,19,00,000

30,000

19,236
1,83,854

2,92,10,322

L I A B I L I T I E S

SHARECAPITAL 
Authorised Capital
90.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
1.000 6 %  Non Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each

Issued & Subscribed
50,002 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
(All Shares are held by the Holding 
Company, i.e.. M/s. Pilani Investment 
& Industries Corpn. Ltd. and out of the 
above 50,000 Equity Shares have been 
allotted for consideration other than cash)

RESERVES & SURPLUS
General Reserve 
Profit & Loss A/c.
Capital Redemption Reserve 

UNSECURED LOAN 
M/s. Pilani Investment & Industries 
Corpn. Ltd. (Interest Free)
M/s. Biria Group Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 
(Advance against Equity)
Security Deposit

CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Sundry Creditors
Provision for Taxation
Notes on Accounts - Schedule 'C

B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S

Amount
Rs.

9.00.000

1.00.000 

10,00,000

5,00,020

28,187
21,47,520

200

48,09,182

2,19,00,000

30,000

19,236
2,77,914

2,97,12,259

Place: Kolkata.
Dated, the 30th day of April, 2011

“A s per our Report of even date” 
For SINGHI & CO. 

Chartered Accountants
S. K. Kothari 

Partner



A T  31 S T  M A R C H ,  2011

As on 31.3.10 A S S E T S
Rs.

FIXED ASSETS

2,57,93,440 As per Schedule 'A ' Annexed

Amount
Rs.

2,57,45,076

INVESTMENTS

28,78,040 As per Schedule' B' Annexed 33,78,040

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
(A) Current Assets

1,246 Cash in hand
(As certified by the Management)

Balance with Scheduled Banks :
3,17,457 In Current A/C.

189

2,99,946

1,98,777

8,100

13,262

(B) Loans & Advances

(Unsecured considered good, recoverable 
in cash or in kind or for value to be received)

Tax deducted at Source & Self Assessment tax

Deposit with Govt. & Cther Authorities

Prepaid Insurance

2,64,790

8,100

16,118

2,92,10,322 2,97,12,259

G. K.TULSIAN 
S. N. NEOTIA

Directors



P R O F IT  &  L O S S  A C C O U N T  F O R

As on 31.3.10 P A R T I C U L A R S Dr. Amount
Rs. Rs.

5,835 To Salary 7,000
1,09,815 H Rates & Taxes 1,09,915

18,494 II Insurance 17,595
II Miscellaneous Expenses:

551 It Bank Charges 696
1,250 II General Charges 147

600 II Filing Fees 600
13,236 II Audit Fees 13,236
32,539 II Professional Fees -

6,000 II Directors' Fees 6,000
51,796 II Depreciation 48,364

4,89,639 II Profit for the year carried down 5,01,937

7,29,755 7,05,490

92,650 II Provision for taxation 94,060

41,616 II Income Tax For Earlier Year -

17,39,643 II Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 21,47,520
Notes on Accounts - Schedule 'C

18,73,909 * 22,41,580

2009-10 Basic and Diluted Earning per share 2010-11
7.94 (Face Value of Rs. 10 per share) 8.16

50,002 Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 50,002

Place : Kolkata
The 30th day of April, 2011

“A s per our report of even date” 
For SINGHl & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 
S. K. Kothari 

Partner



T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  31 S T  M A R C H ,  2011

As on 31.3.10 
Rs.

5,27,076

P A R T I C U L A R S

By Rent
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 50,704/-, 
Previous Year Rs. 79,341/-)

Cr. Amount 
Rs.

5,27,076

240

2,00,217

2,222

Income from Investments 

Dividends on Shares 

Dividends on Mutual Funds 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil, 
Previous Year Rs. N il)

240
1,78,174

7,29,755 7,05,490

4,89,639

13,84,270

18,73,909

By Profit for the year brought down 

Balance carried forward from previous year

5,01,937

17,39,643

22,41,580

G. K.TULSIAN
S. N. NEOTIA

Directors



C A S H  F L O W  S T A T E M E N T  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  3 T S T  M A R C H ,  2011

Rs.
PARTICULARS,:

Rs.
For the year ended 

31st March ’11

Rs.
For the year ended 

31st March, TO

Net Profit before taxation, and extraordinary item

Adjustment fo r:

Depreciation

Income from Investments

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors 

Decrease / (Increase) in Sundry Debtors / Advances

Income Tax paid

Net Cash from operations

Cash flow from investing activities
Short Term Investments

Income From Investments 

Redemption of Mutual Funds / Bonds Units

Net Cash from investing activities

Cash flow from Financing activities
Advance against equity

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year

5,01,937

48,364

(1.78.414)

3,71,887

(2.856)

3,69,031

(66,013)

3,03,018

(5,00,000)

1,78,414

(3,21,586)

(18,568)

3,18,703

3,00,135

4,89,639

51,796

(2,00.457)

3,40,978

239

3,41,217

(43,348)

2,97,869

(3,00,000)

2,00,457

(99,543)

1,98,326

1,20,377

3,18,703

Kolkata
The 30th day of April, 2011 

Note:
The above Cash Flow Statement has been made according to indirect method 
as specified in paragraph 18(b) of A S  3 prescribed by ICAI.

G.K.TULSIAN 
S. N. NECTIA 

Directors



F IX E D  A S S E T S  F O R M IN G  P A R T  O F T H E  B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  A T  31 S T  M A R C H ,  2011  

S C H E D U L E  A '

GROSSBLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

PARTICULARS
As on Additions As on 

1.4.2010 (Deletions) 31.3.2011 
during the year 

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Upto
31.3.2010

Rs.

Forthe
year

Rs.

Upto
31.3.2011

Rs.

As on 
31.3.2011

Rs.

As on 
31.3.2010

Rs.

FREE-HOLD LAND 2,48,22,151 —  2,48,22,151 — — 2,48,22,151 2,48,22,151

BUILDING 34,26,308 —  34,26,308 
FURNITURE, FIXTURES &

24,59,032 48,364 25,07,396 9,18,912 9,67,276

OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 2,92,457 —  2,92,457 2,88,444 2,88,444 4,013 4,013

CURRENT YEAR 2,85,40,916 —  2,85,40,916 27,47,476 48,364 27,95,840 2,57,45,076 2,57,93,440

PREVIOUS YEAR 2,85,40,916 —  2,85,40,916 26,95,680 51,796 27,47,476 2,57,93,440 -



SCHEDULE B‘

IN V E S T M E N T  A S  A T  31 S T  M A R C H ,  2011 

LONGTERM INVESTMENTS (AT COST)

As on 31.3.10 
Nos. Amount

Rs. QUOTED

Cost/ 
Face Value

Nos. Amount

Rs.

Market
Quoted

Investment
Rs.

200

18,811.136
33,472.804
21,986.716
36,549.406
56,403.397
26,730.344

Shares / Bonds(Fully Paid-up)

2,000 Equity Shares —  Mangalore 
Refinery Petrochemicals Ltd.

2,50,000
8,00,000
3,17,203
5,08,837
7.00.000
3.00.000

MUTUAL FUND UNITS

Birla Sunlife Dividend Yield Plus Div. 
Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund-Plan A-Div. 
Birla Sunlife MIP-Wealth 25-Growth 
Birla Sunlife MIP-Wealth 25-Growth 
Birla Sunlife Gilt Plus-D Regular Plar 
Birla Sunlife MIP II Saving - 5 Plan 
Monthly Dividend 
Birla Sunlife Capital Protection 
Oriented Fund Series 3 - Growth

10/- 20 0 2 ,0 0 0 12,900

13.29 18,811.136 2,50,000 2,59,970
23.90 33,472.804 8 ,00,000 7,15,649
14.43 21,986.716 3,17,203 3,92,023
13.92 36,549.406 5,08,837 6,51,676

112.41 56,403.397 7,00,000 6,84,173
1 1 .2 2 26,730.344 3,00,000 2,99,914

1 0 .0 0 50,000.000 5,00,000 5,69,500

28,78,040 33,78,040 35,85,805

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted l.nvestments —  Rs. 33,78,040/- (Rs. 28,78,040/-)
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments —  Rs. 35,85,805/- (Rs. 30,62,735/-)

S C H E D U L E  C

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Basis for preparation of Accounts:
The Accounts have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable 
accounting principles in India, the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

The Company follows accrual basis of accounting and all expenses and income unless 
specified otherwise are accounted for on Mercantile Basis.

ii) Fixed Assets :
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Expenses relating to acquisition and 
installation of fixed assets are capitalised till the assets are put to use.



iii) Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on written down value at the rates specified 
in Schedule  X IV  of the Com panies Act, 1956, as amended vide Notification 
G SR  756(E) dated 16th December, 1993, maximum upto 95%  of the original cost of the 
asset.

iv) Investments:
Investments are stated at cost and are long term in nature.

v) Income Tax:
Current tax is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the 
period. Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income subject to a consideration of prudence.

2. Income from Investments includes :

I) Equity Dividend on M RPL Shares -  Rs. 240/-, TD S ; Rs. NIL
(Previous Year -  Rs. 240/-, TD S : Rs. NIL)

ii) Dividend on Mutual Fund Units -  Rs. 1,78,174/-, TD S ; Rs. NIL
(Previous Year -  Rs. 2,00,217/-, TD S : Rs. NIL)

3. No Depreciation has been charged on Furniture, Fixtures & Cffice Equipments this year since
the written down value as on 1.4.10 is alredy below 5 %  of the Criginal Cost of these block
assets.

4. In view of consideration of prudence in terms of Accounting Standard 22 Accounting for Taxes on 
Income issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and applicable w.e.f. 
1 st April, 2001, deferred tax asset on carried forward long-term capital loss of Rs. 3,17,824/- as 
on 31.3.2011 (Rs.3,79,272/- as on 31.3.2010) has not been recognized in these accounts.There 
are no other timing differences between taxable income & accounting income of the company 
primarily because tax benefit of Depreciation is not available to the Comapny, it being assessed 
under the head income.from House Propertry.

5. As there is only one segment in the Company, AS-17 is not applicable.

6. M/s. Pilani Investment & Industries Corporation Ltd. being our 100% Holding Co. is the only
related party but there has been no transaction with them during the Accounting Year 2010-11. 
Rs. 48,09,182/- being the opening balance (as on 01.04.10) and the year end balance (as on 
31.03.11) in respect of Unsecured Loan (interest free) from M/s. Pilani Investment & Industries 
Corporation Ltd. to its 100% subsediary PIC Properties Ltd.

7. Previous Year’s figures have been re-arranged/regrouped wherever considered necessary.

G.K.TULSIAN
Kolkata S. N. NECTIA
The 30th day of April, 2011 Directors



B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A B S T R A C T  A N D  C O M P A N Y 'S  

G E N E R A L  B U S I N E S S  P R O F IL E

Registration Details ;
Registration No.: 38472 State C o d e : 21
Balance Sheet Date : 31.03.2011

Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Issue

Bonus Issue Private Placement

Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousand)

Total Liabiiities 

29,712 

Source of Fund s: 

Paid up Capital 

500 

Secured Loans

Application of Fu n d s: 

Net Fixed Assets 

25,745 

Net Current Assets 

229

Accumulated Losses

Total Assets 

29,712

Resen/e & Surplus 

1,413 

Unsecured Loans 

26,739

Investments 

3,378 

Misc. Expenditure

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turnover (Rent, Investment Income)

705

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 

502

Earning per Share in Rs.

8.16 —

V Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (As per monetary terms)

Item Code No. (ITC Code) Rental
Product Description 
Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

Total Expenditure 

204

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 

408

Dividend rate %



A U D IT O R S ' R E P O R T

AU DITOR’S  R EP O R T T O T H E  BO ARD  O F D IRECTO RS ON CO N SO LID ATED  F IN AN C IAL  STATEM ENTS 
OF P ILAN I IN VESTM EN T  & IN D U ST R IE S  CORPO RATION  LIM ITED  & ITS SU B S ID IA R Y

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of PILANI INVESTMENT & INDUSTRIES CORPORATION 
LIMITED (the Company), its Subsidiary and Associate.s as at March 31, 2011 and the Consolidated Profit and Loss 
Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatements. An audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not audited the financial statements of the company’s subsidiary and associate, which reflect total proportionate 
assets of Rs.2,55,829.23 lacs as at 31st March, 2011, total proportionate revenues of Rs. 1,76,619.24 lacs and 
proportionate net cash flow of Rs, 396.67 lacs for the year then ended. These financial statements and other financial 
information have been audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary/associate, is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors.

4. Attention is drawn to the following notes on Schedule G:
(i) Note No. 2 (c) regarding treatment of difference of Rs. 15387.64 lacs between the Company's investments and 

share of equity in Associate Company,
(ii) Note No. 6 regarding non-provision of a claim ofRs. 15.44 lacs plus interest thereon from 1st November 1973, 

by a bank in respect of the guarantee given by the company against which Rs. 69.27 lacs has been deposited 
with Debts Recovery Appellate tribunal pursuant to Hon’ble Bombay High Court order, pending disposal of 
Company's writ petition filed thereagainst;

The impact of above items on Company's profit / Reserves is not presently acertainable.
In respect of the above items, the previous year's audit report was similarly modified.

5. We report that subject to the matter stated in para 4(1) above, the consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, “Consolidated 
Financial Statements" and Accounting Standard (AS) 23, “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated 
Financial Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

6. Based on our audit and on consideration of the reports of other auditors on separate financiai statements and on other 
financial information of the Components, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, in our opinion, the attached consolidated financial statements. Subject to matters stated in para 4 above, whose 
impact on the company's Profit/Reserves is not presently ascertainable, give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generaiiy accepted in India;
(i) in the case of fhe Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its 

subsidiary/associate as at 31st March, 2011;
(ii) in the case of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account, of the consolidated profit the Copmpany and its subsidiary/ 

associate for the year then ended ; and
(iii) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow statement, of the consolidated cash flows of the Company and its 

subsidiary/associate for the year then ended.
Por S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.

Firm Registration No. 301003E 
Chartered Accountants 
Per SAN JO Y  K GUPTA

Place; Kolkata Partner

Dated: May 31, 2011 Membership No. 54968



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

L I A B I L I T I E S As at 31st 
March, 2011 

Schedule Rs.

As at 31st 
March,2010 

Rs.

SHARE CAPITAL ‘A’

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS ‘B’

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS ‘C’

7,90,87,500

2,19,00,000

12,31,31,64,819

24,03,87;344

7,90,87,500

2,19,00,000

11,44,94,44,119

23,85,99,704

ACCOUNTING POLICIES & 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

12,65,45,39,663 11,78,90,31,323

Note; Schedules ‘A’ to ‘G’ referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet.

A s  per our report of even date

Place: Kolkata 
Dated; May 31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E 

Chartered Accountants 
Per SAN JO Y  K GUPTA 

Partner
Membership No. 54968



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011

A S S E T S

Schedule

As at 31st 
March, 2011 

Rs.

As at 31st 
March, 2010 

Rs.

FIXED ASSETS

INVESTMENTS

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS 
& ADVANCES

‘D’ 2,76,05,091

‘E’ 12,57,50,78,062

5,18,56,510

2,78,06,321

11,72,31,66,549

24,16,469

3,56,41,984

12,65,45,39,663 11,78,90,31,323

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. D. DALM IA
Secretary

R. A. M AKH AR IA
Executive Director

B. K. B IRLA
Director



C o n s o l id a t e d  P ro fit  &  L o s s  A c c o u n t  fo r  the  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1 s t  M a rc h ,  2011

2010-11 2009-10
Rs. Rs. Rs.

To Payments to and Provisions for employees
Salaries, Bonus etc. 41,63,972 29,31,877
Gratuity 9,87,000 9,04,000
Contribution to Provident and other funds 6,70,908 5,29,761
Employees’ Welfare Expenses 2,32,723

60,54,603
1,94,388

45,60,026
” Rent 5,83,466 5,78,073

Rates & Taxes 20,71,323 20,98,817
L e ss : Recoveries 12,79,332

7,91,991
16,44,271
4,54,546

Insurance 28,542 32,446
Building Maintenance & Service Expenses 66,15,979 62,78,430
Auditors’ Remuneration 
As Auditors :
Audit Fee 1,78,236 1,42,000
For Limited Reviews 99,000 78,000
For Expenses etc. 54,588 46,677

In other manner:
For Certificates etc. 1,35,000

4,66,824
75,000

3,41,677
Directors’ Fees 11,46,000 8,06,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 17,88,030 20,70,474
Loss on Fixed Assets Sold / Discarded 8,271 -

Depreciation 2,06,847 2,48,645
Interest to Income tax department for earlier year 28,45,000 2,68,268
Provision for Non Performimng Assets 76,884 -

Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 13,651 -

(Refer Note No. 20 on Schedule “G ”)

Provision for Diminution in value of Current Investments 1,68,81,244 -

Balance carried down (subject to taxation) 44,70,71,849

48,45,79,181

47,74,88,115

49,31,26,700



C o n s o l id a t e d  P ro f it  &  L o s s  A c c o u n t  fo r  the  y e a r  e n d e d  3 1 s t  M a rc h ,  2011

Rs.
2010-11

Rs.
2009-10

Rs.

By Income from Investments (Other than Trade)
Dividend :

- On Long Term Investments

- On Current Investments

44,01,38,067
1,53,93,021

44,83,31,339

1,60,00,291 

45,55,31,088 46,43,31,630

Interest (Gross)

From Banks [Tax deducted at source 
Rs.28,643(Rs. 10,704)]

On Loans & Deposits with Others

On Income Tax Refunds 

Other Income :
Rent (Gross) [Tax deducted at source 
Rs.15,91,124(Rs.28,25,382)]

Service charges on rented properties

2,86,433

5,447

1,30,56,280

33,22,314

Miscellaneous Receipts

Profit on redemption of Units(Net) (Current Investments- 
Otherthan Trade)

Provision for Non performing Assets no longer 
required written back (net)

Provision for diminution in value of Unquoted 
investments no longer required written back

2,91,880

1,63,78,594

1,16,973

1,22,60,646

1,07,040

1,882

2,222

1,11,144

1,28,88,665

47,01,092

1,75,89,757

26,504

2,16,680

43,607

1,08,07,378

48,45,79,181 49,31,26,700



C onsolidated  Profit & Loss A ccount fo r the ye ar en ded  31 s t M arch, 2011

To Provision for Taxation 
Current [including Rs. Nil 
(Rs. 1,15,36,900) for earlier years] 
MAT Credit (Entitlement) in respect of 
earlieryears 
Deferred Tax Charge

Rs.

50,94,060

24,16,469

2010-11
Rs.

75,10,529
8.79.00.000 

19,77,18,750

3,20,74,925
5.00.00.000 

6,02,95,22,827 5,
6,40,47,27,031 5,68,74,26,417

Transfer to Special Reserve 
Proposed Dividend
(on 79,08,750 shares @ Rs. 25 (Rs. 25) per share) 
Provision for Tax on Dividend 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

Earning Per Share (Face value Rs. 10 each)
Basic & Diluted (Rs.)
(Refer Note No. 14 on Schedule G)

Notes : As per Schedule ‘G’ attached

Schedule G referred to above forms an integral part of the Consolidated 
Profit & Loss Account

As per our report o f even date

2009-10
Rs.

1,62,29,550

(79,77,343)

13,14,720

95,66,927
9.36.00.000 

19,77,18,750

3,28,38,613
5.00.00.000 

1,30,37,02,127

138.27 194.25

Piace; Kolkata 
Dated: May 31, 2011

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E 

Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOY K GUPTA 

Partner
Membership No. 54968



C onsolidated  P rofit & Loss A ccount fo r the  year en ded  31st M arch, 2011

By Balance brought down

Share in the Profit of Associate Company

2010-11 2009-10
Rs. Rs.

44,70,71,849 47,74,88,115

65,39,53,055 1,06,83,32,956

Balance as per last account 5,30,37,02,127 4,14,16,05,346

6,40,47,27,031 5,68,74,26,417

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B. D. D A L M IA
Secretary

R. A. M A K H A R IA
Executive Director

B. K. B IR L A
Director



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2011

(A)

(B)

2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10
Rs. Rs.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 
Net Profit before Tax 44,70,71,849 47,74,88.115

Adjustments for:
Dividend Income (45,55,31,088) (46,43,31,630)
Interest Income (2,91,880) (1,08,922)
Profit on redemption of Units(Net) (1,22,60,646) (2,16,680)
Depreciation 2,06,847 2,48,645
Provision for diminution in value of investments 1,68,81,244 -
Provision for Non-performing Assets 76,884 -
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 13,651 -
Loss on Fixed Assets sold / discarded 8,271̂ -
Provision for diminution in value of 
investments no longer required written back (net) (1,08,07,378)
Provision against Non-performing Assets (Net of 
excess provision written back) — (43,607)

Operating Profit before working Capital Changes (38,24,868) 22,28,543

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 18,75,980 12,30,862
Decrease/ (Increase) in Trade & Other 
Receivables (1,64,65,776) (21,05,855)

Cash Generated From Operations : (1,84,14,664) 13,53,550
Income Taxes paid ( Net of Refunds) (35,06,401) (1,65,64,430)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,19,21,065) (1,52,10,880)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (13,888) (29,348)
Dividend from Associate Company 18,82,12,860 15,39,92,340
Dividend Received from Other Companies and Mutual Funds 26,73,18,228 31,03,39,290
Interest Received 2,91,880 1,08,922
Sale/Redemption of Investments 15,86,65,352 61,80,94,456
Purchase of Investments (36,12,44,410) (83,62,24,098)

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 25,32,30,022 24,62,81,562



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2011

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Dividends paid 
Tax on Dividend Paid

2010-11
Rs.

(19,70,57,053)
(3,28,38,613)

2009-10
Rs.

(19,71,08,900)
(3,36,02,302)

NET CASH FROMZ(USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (22,98,95,666) (23,13,21,052)

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
(A+B+C)

14,13,291 3,59,480

CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS-OPENINGBALANCE* 27,15,557 23,56,077
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-CLOSING BALANCE* 41,28,848# 27,15,557

* Represents Cash and Bank Balances as Indicated in Schedule-F
# Includes Rs. 12,71,547 (Rs. 6,09,850) lying in Unpaid Dividend Account 
As per our attached Report of even date.

For S. R. B A T L IB O I & CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E 
Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOY K GUPTA 

Place; Kolkata Partner
Dated : May 31, 2011 Membership No. 54968

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. A. M A K H A R IA
Executive Director

B. K. B IR L A
Director

B. D. D A L M IA
Secretary



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE ‘A’

SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED
90,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.10 each

As at 31st 
March. 2011

9,00,00,000

(Amount in Rs.) 
As at 31 st 

March. 2010

9,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
79,08,750 Ordinary Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 7,90,87,500 7,90,87,500

Note: Out of the above Subscribed Capital, 75,38,750 Shares have been issued as fully paid-up 
Bonus Shares by Capitalisation of Securities Premium and General Reserve.

SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS 
Capital Redemption Reserve

As per last Account 2 0 0 2 0 0

2 0 0 2 0 0

Investment Reserve
As per last Account 3,76,41,67,570 3,76,41,67,570

3,76,41,67,570 3,76,41,67,570
General Reserve

As per last Account 1,59,86,34,222 1,54,86,34,222
Add : Transfer from Profits Loss Account 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000

1,64,86,34,222 1,59,86,34,222
Special Reserve

As per last Account 78,29,40,000 68,93,40,000
Add ; Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 8,79,00,000 9,36,00,000

87,08,40,000 78,29,40,000
Surplus as per Profit & Loss Account 6,02,95,22,827 5,30,37,02,127

12,31,31,64,819 11.44,94,44,119



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

(Amount in Rs.)
SCHEDULE‘C’ As at 31st As at 31st

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Goods, Services, Expenses etc.

March. 2010

Due to Micro & Small Enterprises (Refer Note No.19 
on Schedule “G”)

— ■ —

Due to others 19,15,206 9,87,641
Sundry Deposits
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Payable when due)

7,08,505 7,08,505

Unpaid Dividend 12,71,547 6,09,850
Other Liabilites 1,42,760 3,33,345

B. PROVISIONS

40;38,018 26,39,341

Gratuity 48,04,000 39,64,000
Leave liability 17,38,000 14,39,000
Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 
(Refer Note No. 20 on Schedule “G”)

13,651 —

Proposed Dividend 19,77,18,750 19,77,18,750
Tax on Proposed Dividend 3,20,74,925 3,28,38,613

23,63,49,326 23,59,60,363
24,03,87,344 23,85,99,704



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011 
SCHEDULE ‘D’
FIXED ASSETS (Amount in Rs.)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NETBLOCK
DESCRIPTION As at

Additions Deductions/ 
01.04.2010 Adjustments

Asat

31.03.2011

Upto

01.04.2010

Forthe
Year

Upto
Deductions/
Adjustments 31.03.2011

As at 

31.03.2011

As at 

31.03.2010

Freehold Land 2,55,50,354 - - 2,55,50,354 ■ - - - 2,55,50,354 2,55,50,354

Buildings 83,81,449 - - 83,81,449 66,07,025 88,722 66,95,747 16,85,702 17,74,424

Furniture, Air-con 
ditioners. Electrical 
Installations, etc.

20,83,400 13,888 2,95,297 18,01,991 19,59,818 25,449 2,87,026 16,98,241 1,03,750 1,23,582

Office Equipments 18,015 - 10,450 7,565 18,015 - 10,450 7,565 - -

Vehicles 6,92,000 - - 6,92,000 3,34,039 92,676 - 4,26,715 2,65,285 3,57,961

TOTAL 3,67,25,218 13,888 3,05,747 3,64,33,359 89,18,897 2,06,847 2,97,476 88,28,268 2,76,05,091 2,78,06,321

Previous year’s Total 3.66,95,870 29,348 - 3,67,25,218 86,70,252 2,48,645 - 89,18,897 2,78.06,321

NOTES:
1. The above cost of land represents 36.94% undivided share in respect of land at 10 Camac Street, Kolkata and Buildings includes 

Rs. 3,50,000 and Rs. 46,05,141 being the cost of 28.125% and 36.94% undivided share in respect of Buildings at 15, India 
Exchange Place, Kolkata and 10, Camac Street, Kolkata respectively in joint ownership with others.

2. Furniture includes Rs. 12,98,302 (Rs. 13,44,997) being the cost of 36.94% undivided share of the Furniture, Air Condotioners, 
Electrical Installation etc. at 10, Camac Street, Kolkata in joint ownership with others.

—   ̂ _



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE 

SCHEDULE‘E’

SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011
(Amount in Rs.)

Face Value As at 31st As at 31st
INVESTMENTS (Other than Trade) Units per Share March, 2011 March, 2010
LONGTERM
QUOTED (FULLY PAID)
Equity Shares
Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited 1,87,098 10 2,94,07,786 2,94,07,786
Aditya Birla Chemicals (India) Ltd. 3,90,000 10 40,95,000 40,95,000
Cimmco Birla Limited 70,780 (3) 10 4,95,460 4,95,460

(3,53,900)
Grasim Industries Limited 43,00,293 (4) 10 61,47,76,811 1,42,21,06,895
Hindalco Industries Limited 2,91,85,398 1 1,83,63,31,900 1,83,63,31,900
Hindustan Everest Tools Limited 52,175 10 4,40,879 4,40,879
Jay Shree Tea & Industries Limited 2,844 5 41,238 41,238

(1,422)
KDDL Limited 35,000 10 2,97,500 2,97,500
Kesoram Industries Limited 24,15,750 10 6,24,47,137 6,24,47,137
Kesoram Textile Mills Limited 24,15,750 2 6,03,938 6,03,938
Mangalam Cement Limited 11,20,000 10 75,60,000 75,60,000
Mangalore Refinery and
Petrochemicals Limited 200 10 2,000 2,000
Orient Paper & Industries Limited 4,25,260 1 43,33,360 43,33,360
Sutlej Textile & Industries Limited 1,14,309 10 24,04,209 24,04,209
SIL Investment Limited 1,14,309 10 19,96,687 19,96,687
Tanfac Industries Limited 4,98,000 10 56,27,400 56,27,400
Tata Steel Limited 62,90,149 10 1,16,81,79,683 1,16,81,79,683
Ultra Tech Cement Limited 24,57,309 (4)

/ \
10 80,73,28,026 -

( )
Umi Special Steels Limited 1,00,000 10 1,70,000 1,70,000
Zenith Birla Limited 3,432 (5) 10 15,078 15,078

(2,860)
Zuari Industries Limited 4,34,000 10 78,98,800 78,98,800

4,55,44,52,892 4,55,44,54,950

Fully Paid Up Equity shares in Asscoiate Company
Century Textiles & Industries Ltd. 3,42,20,520 10 1,58,57,50,974# 1,58,57,50,974
Add: Proportionate Share of accumulated
profit of the Associate Company upto 31st March 2010 5,87,10,31,290 5,21,70,78,235

# Includes Goodwill Rs.11,67,74,346 arisen on acquisition of shares 7,45,67,82,264 6,80,28,29,209

(Refer Note No. 2 (c) on Schedule ‘G’) 12,01,12,35,156 11,35,72,84,159



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE ‘E’ (C on td .)

INVESTMENTS 
UNQUOTED (Fully Paid)

Equity Shares

Birla Buildings Limited 
Birla Consultants Limited 
Indo Thai Synthetics Co Limited 
Bangkok (Thailand)
Indo-Phil Textile Mills Inc., Manila 
(Republic of Phillippines)
The Eastern Economist Limited 
The Hindustan Times Limited 
The Industry House Limited 
Gmmco Limited

Units Of Mutual Funds

Birla Sunlife Yield Plus - Dividend 
Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund - Dividend 
Birla Sunlife MIP-Wealth 25 - Growth 
Birla Sunlife Gilt Plus - D Regular Plan 
Birla Sunlife MIP-II Savings - 5 
Plan Monthly Dividend 
Birla Sunlife Capital Protection 
Oriented Fund Series 3

*NAV as on 31st March, 2011 - Rs 37,72,905/- (Rs. 30,47,515/-)

(Amount in Rs.)

Face Value As at 31st As at 31st
Units per Share March, 2011 March, 2010

15,000 10 1,52,258 1,52,258
12,000 10 1,20,000 1,20,000

2,07,900 10 11,41,857 11,41,857
Baht

2,11,248 10 2,02,692 2,02,692
Pesos

400 100 40,101 40,101
1,92,000 10 2,17,948 2,17,948

2,812 100 1,89,409 1,89,409
68,249 10 3,41,24,500 3,41,24,500

3,61,88,765 3,61,88,765

18,811 10 2,50,000 2,50,000
33,473 10 8,00,000 8,00,000
58,536 10 8,26,040 8,26,040

1 56,403 10 7,00,000 7,00,000
26,730 10 3,00,000 3,00,000

50,000 10 5,00,000 _
(-)

33,76,040 * 28,76,040

CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
UNQUOTED

Mutual Funds

Birla Sunlife Frontline Equity-Growth

Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund-Dividend

Units

3,63,592 10 3,00,00,000 -

(-)
1,39,395 (6) 

(2,92,899)
10 1,30,00,000 2,25,21,039

d -  
(18,88,290)

10 — 2,37,25,358

21,70,834 (6) 
(11,12,329)

10 4,92,53,990 2,36,01,315



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OFTHE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE ‘E’ (C on td .)

Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund-Growth 
DSP Black Rock Equity Fund-Dividend

DSP Black Rock Equity Fund-Growth

DSP Black Rock Top-100 Fund-Div.

Franklin India Bluechip Fund-Growth

HDFC Equity Fund Growth 
HDFC Top - 200 - Dividend

HDFC Top - 200 - Growth

ICICi Prudential Focused Fund-Div.

ICICI Prudential Dynamic Plan - Cum.

ICICI Prudential Focused Fund - Growth
IClCi Prudential GroiArth
ICICI Prudential Infrastraclure Fund - Growth

Kotak Mid Cap - Dividend

Kotak Mid Cap - Growth

Reliance Banking Fund - Dividend

Reliance Equity Opportunities Fund - 
Growth
Reliance Growth Fund-Growth 
Reliance Growth Fund-Dividend

Reliance Pharma Fund-Growth 
Reliance Regular Saving Fund-Div.

Reliance Regular Saving Fund-Growth 
Sundram Select Focus - Appreciation

(Amount in Rs.)

Face Value As at 31st As at 31st
Units per Share March, 2011 March. 2010
3,07,637 10 3,00,99,222 3,00,99,222
3,21,229 (6) 10 1,60,44,859 —

(-)
16,62,040 10 2,25,35,605 2,25,35,605

13,79,131 (6) 10 2,65,00,000 -

(-)
12,35,863 10 2,35,50,611 2,20,92,598

(11,66,411)
66,732 (6)

(-)
72,405

10 1,50,00,000 -

10 1,60,19,149 1,60,19,149
- 10 - 2,20,96,381

(5,73,332)
- 10 - 2,01,83,476

(1,13,956)
10,56,510(6) 10 2,14,70,588 —

( - )
1,97,717 10 2,00,00,000 -

(-)
12,37,031 10 1,60,19,545 1,60,19,545

1,90,052 10 1,75,00,000 1,75,00,000
3,67,872 (6) 

(-)
5,13,321 (6)

10 1,20,00,000 -

10 1,00,00,000
(-)

7,78,236 (6) 10 2,00,00,000 -

(-)
2,82,490 

/ \
10 1,06,61,288 -

( I
2,90,512 10 1,00,00,000 _

(-)
79,938 10 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

3,32,939 10 1,59,63,840 1,47,29,624
(3,08,554)

5,48,578 10 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
4,64.776 (6) 

(-)
10,61,372

10 1,08,46,375 -

10 2,56,94,273 2,56,94,273
1,14,651 10 1,00,00,000 -

(-)



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OFTHE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011 

SCHEDULE ‘E’ (Contd.)

Units
Sundram Select Midcap - Apprication

Sundram Smile - Dividend

Sundram Smile - Growth

UTI Midcap - Dividend

UTI Midcap - Growth

UTI Master Value Fund - Growth

*NAV as on 31st March, 2011 - Rs. 58,13,46,546/- 
(Rs.34,63,34,627/-)

Less : Provision for diminution in value 
of Unquoted investments

Aggregate amount o f Investments
Quoted
Unquoted

Market Value o f Quoted Investments

Face Value 
per Share

12,130 (6) 10
(-)

7,56,435 (6) 
/ \

10
(-)

2,07,342 (6) 10
{-)

3,86,698 (6) 10
(-)

3,10,336 (6) 10
(-)

1,96,618 10
(-)

(Amount in Rs.)

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2011 March, 2010

20,00,000 -

1,00,00,000 -

70,00,000 -

1,00,00,000 -

1,00,00,000 -

1,00,00,000 -

54,11,59,345* 32,68,17,585

12,59,19,59,306 11,72,31,66,549

1,68,81,244 -

12,57,50,78,062 11,72,31,66,549

12,01,12,35,156 11,35,72,84,159
56,38,42,906 36,58,82,390

12,57,50,78,062 11,72,31,66,549

36,54,12,85,644 40,43,62,79,656

N otes:
(1) Besides the above, the fo llow ing  investm ents were purchased and sold during the year

No. of Units
Name of the Mutual Fund Face Value 2010-11 2009-10
Birla Sunlife Medium Term Plan - Fortnightly Dividend 10 — 22,39,340
Birla Sunlife Savings Fund - Institutional - Daily dividend 10 — 30,07,877
Birla Sunlife Short Term Fund 1 - Daily Dividend 10 — 51,10,869
DSP Black Rock Floating Rate Fund 10 — 22,46,551
HDFC Cash Mang.Treasury 10 — 80,44,921
ICICI Prud. Flexi Income Plan Premium - Daily Dividend 10 — 65,47,293
Reliance Money Manager Fund 1000 — 1,73,312
Reliance Liquid Fund Daily Dividend 10 — 40,28,058

Sundram Ultra ST Fund Retail - Dividend 10 56,29,172 —



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OFTHE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011 

SCHEDULE ‘E’ (C on td .)

(2) The following Shares, although in Physical possession o fthe Company have not been indicated above 
since the value thereof has been written off in earlier years.

QUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares
Jiyajeerao Cotton Mills Limited 
Kalyan Sundaram Cement Induslries Limiled 
Saurashtra Chemicals Limited 
Tungbhadra Industries Limited 

UNQUOTED (Fully Paid)
Equity Shares
Bombay Industrial Traders Ltd. (In liquidation) 
Hind Cycles Ltd. (in liquidation)
Industrial Plants Ltd. (In liquidation) 
Mckenzies Ltd.
In Subsidiary Companies
Atlas Iron & Alloys Ltd., (In liquidation)
Debentures
Hind Cycles Ltd. (in liquidation)
UNQUOTED (Partly paid)
Equity Shares
Central Distributors Ltd.
(In Liquidation) (Paid up Rs.7.50 per share)

Nos.

150
50,000

1,65,874
1,865

915
400

75.000 
753

72.000 

66

1,284

Face Value

10
10
10
10

100
100
10
10

10

100

10

(3) Received on consolidation of shares on reduction of capital under a Scheme.

(4) 43,00,293 Equity Shares of Samruddhi Cement Limited were received during the year on demerger of 
cement business of Grasim Industries Limited under a Scheme of Agreement, which has subsquently 
been merged with Ultratech Cement Limited and 24,57,309 Equity Shares of Ultratech Cement Limited 
were received against the company’s holding in Samruddhi Cement Limiled.

(5) Incudes 572 Equity Shares being Bonus Shares received during the year.

(6) Indicates Securities where provision towards dimunition in the value of Investments has been made.



SCHEDULE FORMING PART OFTHE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011
(Amount in Rs.)

SCHEDULE ‘F’

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES 
A. CURRENT ASSETS 

Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured, Considered Good except stated otherwise) 
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
Other Debts

B.

Rs.

7,68,838
6,51,224

As at 31st 
March, 2011

Rs.

Less; Provision for Non-performing assets
14,20,062*

76,884

‘ Including Rs. 7,68,838 (Rs. NIL) considered Non-performing Assets
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash on hand
With Scheduled Banks on;
Current Account 
Unpaid Dividend Account

LOANS ANDADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good except as stated otherwise)
Advances:

Advance payment of Income Tax,
Tax deducted at source and refunds
Receivable (after adjusting provision) 1,11,28,322

MAT Credit Entitlement 72,07,185
Other Advances recoverable in cash or
Kind or for value lo be received 2,02,29,398 #,
Less; Provision for Non-performing Assets 16,65,000

Deposit With Government & Other Authorities 
Sundry Deposits
Deposit against demand under dispute

1,85,64,398
8,100

25,48,676
69,27,803

13,43,178

7,496

28,49,805
12,71,547

# Including Rs.16,65,000 (Rs.16,65,000) considered Non-performing Assets 

NOTE:
@ Amount due from a Director of the company 

Advances
Maximum amount due at any time during the year 

Advances

As at 31st 
March, 2010

Rs.

12.40.838
12.40.838

12,40,838

19,315

20,86,392
6,09,850

1,19,45,823 

79,77,343

39.42.844
16,65,000
22.77.844 

8,100
25,48,676 
69,27,803 

4,63,84,484 3,16,85,589

5,18,56,510 3,56,41,984

48,495 52,274



S C H E D U L E  F O R M IN G  PA R T O F TH E C O N S O L ID A T E D  STA TE M E N TS  OF  
A C C O U N T AS AT A N D  FO R TH E YEAR EN D E D  M AR C H  31, 2011 
S C H E D U L E -‘G’
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS :
1. Principles of consolidation of financiai statements :

The consolidated financial statements which relate to Pilani Investment and Industries
Corporation Limited and its subsidiary company, have been prepared on the following basis;
a. The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary are combined on a line-by-line 

basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group balances, intra group transactions and any 
unrealized profit/loss included therein.

b. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting 
policies, except stated otherwise, for like transactions and are presented, to the extent 
possible, in the same manner as the company’s separate financial statements.

c. The excess/shortfall of cost to the company of its investments in the subsidiary company 
as on the date of investment is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill/capital 
reserve as the case may be. Any such difference arising subsequently is adjusted against 
the Profit and Loss Account.

d. The subsidiary company considered in the financial statements is as follows:

2.

Name Country of % of voting power
Incorporation as on 31.03.2011

PIC Properties Limited India 100

(100)
e. The other subsidiary company Atlas Iron & AlloyS Limited incorporated in India in which 

the company has got 98.83% voting power, has not been considered in the financial 
statements, since the above subsidiary company is in liquidation.

Investments in Associates
a. In terms of Accounting Standard 23 -  “Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated 

Financial Statements” the Company has prepared the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements by Accounting for investment in associates under the equity method.
The associate company considered in the financial statements is as follows :b.

Name Country of 
Incorporation

% of voting power 
as on 31.03.2011

Century Textiles and 
Industries Limited India 36.78

(36.78)
c. The difference of Rs. 1,53,87,64,446 between the cost of company’s investments in its 

Associate Company and the proportionate share in the equity of the associate company as 
on 31®* March 2002 had been credited to the Revenue Reserve in the financiai statements, 
since such differences on the various dates of acquisition were not available. However,



SCHEDULE -  ‘G ’ (Contd.)

Rs. 11,67,74,346 being the excess of the cost of the company’s investments in its associate 
company, acquired during the year 2005-06 & 2006-07 over the proportionate share in the 
equity of the company as on the date of investment has been identified as Goodwill and 
included in the carrying value ofthe investments.

3. Accounting Policies
i. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the 
Accounting Standards notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rule, 2006 (as amended), 
the relevant provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956 and the directions prescribed by the 
Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking Financial Companies. The financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basic, unless other wise 
stated. The Accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in 
the previous year.

ii. Revenue Recognition 
Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established 
by the balance sheet date. Dividend received from Overseas Companies is accounted for, 
net of tax deducted at source.
Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.
Profit on Sale /  R edem ption  o f  Mutual F und Units
Profit on Sale / Redemption of Mutual Funds units are accounted for net of security transaction 
tax and exit load.

iii. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although 
these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, 
actual results could differ from these estimates.

iv. Provisioning on Standard Assets
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide Notification No. DNBS.223/CGM(US)-2011 dated 17th 
January 2011 has issued directions to all NBFCs to make provision of 0.25% on standard 
assets with immediate effect. Accordingly, the Company has made contingent provision at 
the rate of 0.25% on standard assets in accordance with RBI guidelines.

V. Provision I Write Off against Non Performing Assets
Provision I Write Off against Non Performing Assets are made as per the guidelines prescribed 
by Reserve Bank of India for Non-deposit taking Finance Companies (NBFC-ND).



SCHEDULE -  ‘G ’ (Contd.)

vi. Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if 
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to 
its working condition for its intended use.

vii. Depreciation
(a) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on reducing balance method at the rates specified 

in Schedule XIV ofthe Companies Act, 1956.
(b) Depreciation on fixed assets added / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata 

basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.
viii. impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any 
indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized 
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. in assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre­
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and 
risks specfic to the asset.

ix. Investments
(a) Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 

classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. 
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis.

b) Long-term investments are valued at cost, i.e. book value of the investments as reflected in 
the financial statements as on 31 ®‘ March, 2003 and for subsequent diminution, provision 
is made by way of adjustment against Investment Reserve in terms of scheme of 
Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court during an earlier year. Further 
long term investments purchased after 1 ®* April, 2003 are valued at cost. Provision for diminution 
in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value ofthe investments.
Long-term investments held by the subsidiary company are valued at cost and provision for 
diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value ofthe 
investments.

c) Shares held in Overseas Companies are valued at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of payment(s).

X. Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and 
short term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

xi. Provision for Retirement benefits
(i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation are defined 

contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and 
Loss Account ofthe year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There
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are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.
(ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligations and is provided for on the basis of an 

actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
(iii) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation done 

under projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year.
(iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not 

deferred.
xii. Earning per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted forthe effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xiii. Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the 
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income 
Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences 
of earlier years.
The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted 
for using the tax rates and laws that have been substantially enacted as ofthe Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realised. If the company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses, 
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realized.
At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It 
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent it has become reasonably certain 
or virtual certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date. The 
company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no 
longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write­
down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be. tliat sufficient future taxable income will be available.
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which
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the Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in 
accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance Note issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and 
loss account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each 
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the 
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal 
Income Tax during the specified period, 

xiv. Foreign Currency Transactions
a) initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to 
the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

b) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary 
items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were 
determined. Shares held in Overseas Companies are valued at the exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of payment(s).

c) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement/conversion of monetary items 
are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

d) Foreign Exchange Contracts not intended for trading or speculation purpose 
The Premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized 
as expenses or income over the life of the respective contracts. Exchange differences 
on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which 
the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for the year.

XV. Assets acquired under lease
For assets acquired under operating lease, rentals payable are charged to the profit & loss 
account.

xvi. Contingencies
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable 
certainty or in respect of which a reliable estimate cannot be made are treated as contingent 
and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

xvii.Provision
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted
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4.

5.

to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Company’s Share in the outstanding Capital Commitments of Associate:
Rs. 3,71,65,00,000 (Rs. 2,77,98,00,000)
Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of -
a) Uncalled liability on partly paid Shares held as Investments Rs. 3,210/- (Rs. 3210).
b) Income Tax demands for earlier years aggregating to Rs. 39,41,335 (Rs. 1,69,97,405) 

disputed by the Company/ Income Tax department in appeal.
c) Proportionate amount in respect of Century Textiles & Industries Limited, an associate 

company Rs. 1,34,21,00,000 (Rs. 1,12,96,00,000).
6 . The Company has disputed the claim for recovery of Rs. 15,44,486 plus interest from 

1®' November, 1973 made by State Bank of India, Bombay in a suit filed against the company 
on the basis of guarantee given in respect of the advances made to Hind Cycles Limited against 
their Cash Credit Account by the said Bank. Against the above claim, Rs. 69,27,803 have been 
deposited with Debts Recovery Appellate Tribunal pursuant to Hon'ble Bombay High Court 
Order while admitting the writ petition filed by the Company. Pending the High Court judgment 
in the above matter, no provision against the above claim has been made in the accounts.

7. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years 
or more of service is entitled to gratuity on terms not less favourable than the provisions of The 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is unfunded.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the Proft 
& Loss Account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the 
respective plans.

Net Employee Expense/(benefit) 2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10
Rs. Rs.

Current Sevice Cost 2,28,000 1,89,000
Interest cost on benefit obligation 3,17,000 2,63,000
Expected return on plan assets - -

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 4,42,000 4,52,000
Total employer expense recognised in Profit
and Loss Account 9,87,000 9,04,000
Benefit Asset/(Liability)
Defined benefit obligation (48,04,000) (39,64,000)
Fair value of Plan Assets - -

Benefit Asset/(Liability) (48,04,000) (39,64,000)
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8.

9.

2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10
Rs. Rs.

(iii) Movement in benefit liabiiity
Opening defined benefit obligation 39,64,000 30,60,000
Interest cost 3,17,000 2,63,000
Current service cost 2,28,000 1,89,000
Benefits paid (1.47,000) -
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 4,42,000 4,52,000
Closing benefit obligation 48,04,000 39,64,000

(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows
Discount rate 8 .00% 7.50%
Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

(V) Amount incurred as expense for defined contribution plans
Contribution to Provident / Pension fund 3,63,917 2,70,509
Contribution to Superannuation fund 3,06,991 2,34,991

(vi)

(vii)
2007-08

22,57,000

(22,57,000")
1,24,000

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account 
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor, such as supply and demand 
in the employment market.
Amounts for the current and previous periods are as foiiows :
Gratuity 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09
Defined Benefit Obligaiton 48,04,000 39,64,000 30,60,000
Plan Assets _ _ _
Surplus/(Deficit) (48,04,000) (39,64,000) (30,60,000)
Experience adjustments 69,000 3,57,000 3,16,000
on plan liabilities

The management has relied on the overall actuarial valuation conducted by the actuary.
The Company has given undertaking to some Banks/Financial Institutions for non-disposal of its 
share holding in the following Bodies Corporate without their approval, till the loans given by 
those banks/institutions are repaid in full by these Bodies Corporate: -
(i) Aditya Birla Chemicals (India) Ltd. (ii) Tanfac Industries Ltd.
(iii) Aditya Birla Nuvo Ltd. (iv) Mangalam Cement Ltd.
(v) Century Textile & Industries Ltd. (vi) Kesoram Industries Ltd
(a) Building maintenance expenses include Salaries Rs. 6,57,983 (Rs. 5,92,218), Insurance 

Rs. 54,946 (Rs. 65,898) and Electricity Expenses Rs. 39,88,696 (Rs. 38.57,564).
(b) Miscellaneous Expenses includes Directors’ Travelling Expenses Rs.1,29,788 

(Rs.1,65,142).
10. The CompetentAuthority under Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 has declared excess
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11.

13.

land of 329.25 sq.mtrs. in respect of land held by the Company at Kolkata and 1,486.87sq.mtrs. 
in respect of land at New Delhi transferred to a subsidiary of the company w.e.f. 1.4.1985, 
against which a stay has been granted to the Company by the Appellate Authority under the 
said Act. Further in view of Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Repeal Ordinance 1999 (No.5 of 
1999) dated 11.1.1999, the Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 stands repealed 
as advised to the company by the solicitors.
No effect has been given in the accounts in respect of the following Equity Shares received by 
way of fully paid Bonus Shares on shares not belonging to the Company and the same are 
being held in trust by the company: -

12.

SI. Name ofthe Company
(a) Grasim Industries Ltd.
(b) Hindustan Motors Ltd.
(c) Century Textile & Industries Ltd.
(d) Tungabhadra Industries Ltd.
(e) Hindustan Everest Tools Ltd.
Details of Executive Director’s Remuneration

2010-11

No.of Equitv Shares 
1079 
440 
220 
4

117

Face Value per Share (Rs) 
10/- 
10/- 
10/- 
10/- 
10/-

2009-10

Sa/ary & Bonus*
Provident Fund Contribution 
NOTES:
In addition to the above, the following 
expenses have been incurred forthe 
Executive Director;
Rent
Medical Expenses
Superannuation Scheme Contribution
Directors’ Fee
Leave Travel Assistance

Rs.
23,36,064

2,30,400

Rs.

25,66,464

Rs,
17,84,048
1,72,800

Rs.

19,56,848

5,07,760
1,60,000
2,88,000
1,20,000
2,80,000

39,22,224

5,03,760
1,26,538
2,16,000
1,00,000

29,03,146
Excluding taxable value of perquisites Rs. 2,68,405 (Rs.2,15,904)

Note: As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actual basis for 
the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the executive director is not included above.
Segment Reporting
The Company has only one business segment viz. investment and related activities and its 
operations are also confined to one geographical segment i.e. India. As such, no further disclosure 
under Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting’’ is required.



SCHEDULE -  ‘G ’ (Contd.)

14. Basis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share is as under: -
2010-11 2009-10

Profit after Tax as per Profit & Loss Account Rs. 1,09,35,14,375 1,53,62,54,144
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares Nos. 79,08,750 79,08,750
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share Rs. 138.27 194.25
Nominal value of Shares Rs. 10 10

15. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Names ofthe related parties

Key Management Personnel Shri R. A. Makharia (Executive Director)
(b) Aggregate Related Party Disclosures

Key Management Personnel 2010-11 2009-10
Rs. Rs.

Remuneration 39,22,224 29,03,146
16. The break up of deferred tax asset as on 31“ March 2011 is as follows: -

As at 31st As at 31st
March 2011 March 2010

Rs. Rs.
Timing Difference in depreciable assets -  68,656
Expenses allowable against taxable income in future years -  17,94,742
Provision for Non-Performing Assets -  5,53,071

Total   -  24,16,469

In Case of Subsidiary Company namely PIC Properties Limited, Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 
3,17,824 (Rs. 3,79,272) has not been recognized, since the management feels that there may 
not be sufficient taxable income in the near future, to claim the above amount.

17. Based on the allowance of certain claims by the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), the 
Company had received interest of Rs.1,01,45,274 during the year 2004-2005 from Income Tax 
department for the assessment years 1993-94 to 1996-97. However, the department has gone 
into appeal against the above judgment and accordingly, the said interest income being a 
matter of contingency, has been netted off with refunds receivable under Loans and Advances 
and has not been credited to the Profit and Loss Account.
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18. Assets given on operating lease :
The Company has leased out certain buildings on operating lease. The lease term is for 2-3 
years and thereafter renewable. The rent is not based on any contingencies. There are no 
restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. The leases are cancelable.

19. Based on the information’s/documents available with the Company, no creditor is covered 
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As a result, no interest 
provisions/payments have been made by the company to such creditors, if any, and no 
discolosures are made in these accounts.

20. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide Notification No. DNBS. 223/CGM(US)-2011 dated January 
17, 2011 has issued directions to all NFBCs to make a provision of 0.25% on the standard 
assets with immedite effect. Accordingly, the Company has made provision of Rs. 13,651/- on 
the standard assets as on March 31, 2011.

21. As per Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by Hon’ble Calcutta High Court in an earlier, long­
term investments are valued at cost, i.e. book value ofthe investments as reflected in the financial 
statements as on 31 st March, 2003 and for subsequent diminution, provision is made by way of 
adjustment against Investment Reserve as indicated in Note no. 3(ix)(b) above. There has been 
no impact on the profit for the current year and previous year due to above acounting treatment.

22. Figures given in the brackets represents those of Previous year and same have been regrouped 
where necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

Signature to Schedules 'A to ‘G’

As per our report of even date
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO.
Firm registration No. 301003E 
Chartered Accountants 
Per SANJOY K GUPTA 
Partner
Membership No. 54968 

Place: Kolkata 
Dated : May 31, 2011

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. A. MAKHARIA
Executive Director

B. K. BIRLA
Director

B. D. DALMIA
Secretary
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PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Office : 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 001

I/We. 

of....

being a Member/Members of Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited hereby appoint

.................................................................................... of........................................................

................................................................ or failing him...........................................................

of.............................................................................................................................................

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us, and on my/our behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company, to be held on Friday, the 26th August, 2011 and at any adjournment thereof.

AS WITNESS my/our hand(s) this....................................day of........................................ 2011.

Signature.
Affix a 
Re. 1

Revenue
Stamp

Note: The proxy must be deposited at the Registered Cffice of the Company 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee 
Road, Kolkata - 700 001 not less than forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting.

PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Cffice : 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 001

Annual General Meeting on Friday, the 26th August, 2011

A member/Proxy wishing to attend the meeting may please complete this Admission Slip and hand 
it over at the entrance.

Full name of the member in block letters Signature

Folio No./C.I.D. No..........
No. of Shares held............



NOTICE OF MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of PILANI INVESTMENT 
AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED will be held at Birla Building, 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata -  700001 on Friday the 26*’ August, 2011 at 3.00 p.m. to transact, with or without modification(s) 
as may be permissible, the following business ;
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 “ March, 2011 and the Profit & 

Loss Account for the year ended on that date. Report of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.
2. To sanction the declaration and the payment of dividend on Equity shares for the year ended 31 “ 

March, 2011.
3. To appoint a director in place of Shri D. K. Mantri, who retires from office by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4. To appoint a director in place of Shri A. V. Jalan, who retires from office by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
5. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

Registered Office : By Order of the Board of Directors
Birla Building B.D. Dalmia
9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Secretary
Kolkata-700001
Dated, the 4'" day of July, 2011
NOTES:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more 

proxies to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a Member.The 
Company must receive proxy form(s) not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The instrument 
appointing a proxy should however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the company at Birla 
Building, 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001 not less than 48 hours before the commencement 
of the meeting.

2. Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Equity Shares of the Company will remain closed 
from 20'" August, 2011 to 26"’ August 2011 (both days inclusive).

3. The Dividend on the Ordinary Shares of the Company, as recommended by the Board of Directors 
of the company, when sanctioned at the Annual General Meeting of the company will be paid to 
those shareholders or their mandates whose names stand registered on the company’s Register 
of Members:
a  as Beneficial Owners as at the end of business on 10'* August, 2011 as per the lists to be

furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited in respect of the shares held in Electronic Form, and

b as Member in the Register of Members of the company after giving effect to valid share
transfers in physical form lodged with the company on or before 10’” August, 2011.

4. In order to avoid the risk of loss/interception of dividend warrants. Shareholders are advised 
to avail of ECS facility whereby the dividend will be directly credited electronically to their



respective Bank accounts. This will ensure speedier credit of dividend. You may use the 
enclosed ‘ECS Mandate Form’ and forward necessary details to the Company and/or 
Depository Participant, as the case may be, to avail benefit of this service.

5. a. Under the provisions of Section 205A ofthe Companies Act, 1956, the Company has already
deposited all unclaimed dividends declared upto and including financial year 2002-2003 to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

h Members are hereby informed that dividends for the financial year 2003-2004 and thereafter,
which remain unpaid or unclaimed over a period of 7 years have to be transferred by the 
Company to INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND constituted by the Central 
Government under Section 205(A) & 205(C) of the Companies Act, 1956. It may be noted 
that once the unclaimed dividend amount is transferred to the Fund as stated above, no 
claim shall lie in respect of such amount against the Company or the Fund.

6 . In case the mailing address mentioned on this Annual Report is either without Pin Code or 
with incorrect Pin Code, members are requested to kindly inform the Company and/or 
Depository Participant, as the case may be, their Pin Code immediately for speedy and 
proper delivery.

7. a. Members who are holding Shares in identical order of names in more than one Folio are
requested to apply to the Company alongwith the relevant Share Certificate for consolidation 
of such folios in one folio.

b. Members are also requested to notify change in address, if any, immediately to the company
at its Registered Office by quoting their Registered Folio Number(s) in respect of their physical 
-Shares and to their Depository Participants in respect of their electronic share account.

8 . Reappointment of Directors: As per requirment of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with 
Stock Excanges, the particulars of Directors retiring by rotation and eligible for re-appointment 
are given herein below
a. Shri D. K. Mantri, Aged 55 years, is a renowned industrialist with vast experience. He 

heads the DM Group which is a multi-divisional group with interests in Tea, Engineering, 
Trading and Financial Services. He is actively involved with Sangeet Kala Mandir, a 
most prestigious Cultural Institution in the country, for more than last two decades. He 
is the Director of Suprabha Industries Ltd., Vijayshree Autocom Ltd. and various other 
Pvt. Ltd. Companies. Shri D. K. Mantri does not hold any Equity Share in the Company.
Except Shri D. K. Mantri, no other Directors of the Company are interested in the aforesaid 
resolution.

b. Shri A.V. Jalan, aged 35 years is a B.Com (Hons.) from St. Xavier’s College, Kolkata and 
has completed management course on Marketing and Corporate Finance from London 
School of Economics, U.K. He has been involved in management of several manufacturing 
companies since 1998 and having rich experience in business administration. He is the 
Director of Mangalam Cement Ltd., Vidula Consultancy Services Ltd. and various other 
Pvt. Ltd. Companies. Shri A.V. Jalan does not hold any Equity Share in the Company.
Shri A. V. Jalan, Shri B. K. Birla and Shri Kumar Mangalam Birla are related to each other 
and interested in the aforesaid resolution.



Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Ltd.
Birla Building
9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road
Kolkata-700001

Re ; Paym ent of dividend through ECS

# 1 wish to participate in the Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) introduced by Reserve Bank o f India.

# I do not wish to participate in the ECS. However, kindly print the bank particulars given below on the dividend 
warrant being issued to me.

1. Name ofthe Holder : _________________________________________________

2. Ref Folio No. ; _______________ _________________________________
3. Particulars o f Bank

a. Name ofthe Bank : _________________________________________________

b. Branch Address : _________________________________________________
# c. 9 digit Code Number ofthe

Bank & Branch as appearing 
on the MICR Cheque issued

by the Bank

d. Account (Please tick)

e. Ledger Folio No. (if any) 

f  Account No.

Savings Current Cash Credit

I hereby declare that the particulars above given are correct and complete. I undertake to inform any subsequent 
changes in the above particulars before the relevant book closure date(s). If the payment is delayed or not effected 
at all for any reason(s), beyond the control o f the Company, I would not hold the Company responsible.

D a te :

Signature ofthe first holder

Notes: (1) Please ensure that the details submitted by you are correct as any error therein could result in 
thedividend amount being credited to a wrong account.

* The nine digit code number o f your bank and branch is mentioned on the MICR band next to the cheque 
number.

# Delete whichever is not applicable.


